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IMPORTANT NOTICE

CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents
of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of
this report.

This report, for which the directors of Heng Xin China Holdings Limited (the “Directors”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to Heng Xin China Holdings Limited. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CORPORATE CHART
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Heng Xin China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as
an exempted company with limited liability in Bermuda on 9 September
2002 under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). The
Company’s shares were listed on GEM on 16 April 2003. The following is
a corporate chart of the Company and its principal subsidiaries up to the

date of this report.
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STATEMENT FROM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

THRESHRES

STATEMENT FROM CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Heng Xin China
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the annual
report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for
the six months ended 31 December 2012.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the six months ended 31 December 2012, the Group recorded a
consolidated turnover of approximately HK$300.3 million (year ended
30 June 2012: HK$612.5 million) and a profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company of approximately HK$1.2 million (year ended
30 June 2012: HK$152.9 million). The basic earnings per share was
approximately HKO.04 cent, compared to approximately HK6.12 cents
for the year ended 30 June 2012. The directors do not recommend the
payment of dividend for the six months ended 31 December 2012 (year
ended 30 June 2012: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FUTURE
PROSPECTS

During this financial period, based on the progress of its business
development and in response to the market condition, the Group
completed the transformation from wireless digital television to digital
cable television and continued to devote its effort to consolidate and
drive the growth of its principal businesses according to its established
overall development strategic plan, and optimize the development
pattern for those principal businesses, shaping the development trend
of the digital television broadcast industry, with particularly the three
networks integration business in cable digital television as the principal
business, laying a foundation for sustainable growth of the industry.
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STATEMENT FROM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

THREBHRES

As for the cable digital television industry, the Group continued to
implement its strategic development plan to adapt to the three networks
integration policy in digital television broadcast industry and meet the
huge market demand in the PRC. The Group sustained to put great
effort in driving the growth of its business in contracted regions during
the year, continued to improve the quality of the service of our cable
digital television business, expanded and improved value added services,
provided system solutions for the cable digital television two-way
conversion business, actively promoted research, development and sales
of products with its own intellectual properties, continued to consolidate
our customer base and strategic partnership in the industrial chain of
such segment, and established our position as an operator of television
broadcasting integrated businesses, developing the competitive edge for
the sustainable growth of the Group.

As for the wireless digital television value-added service industry, in
response to the market condition and based on the progress of its
business development, the Group continued to strengthen and promote
the value added services for the wireless digital television business, and
strive for the provision of value added services for regional wireless digital
television business in contracted regions, thereby creating favourable
conditions for the development of such business.

During the year, as the supplier for its traditional principal businesses
in wireless audio baseband integrated circuits and information security
technology products and solutions, the Group continued to consolidate
its existing customer base and our cutting-edge products and
technology, put great effort in exploring new domestic and overseas
markets, increase our market shares, and strengthen the in-depth
research and development of our own core technology products, and
their application and promotion in the fields concerned. We caught up
with market development, and provided advanced products and quality
services to the users, thereby creating a solid and established customer
base, and favourable conditions for sustainable growth.

The Group always follows and adapts to the development and demand
of the market in Mainland China. We have grasped the huge business
opportunities, and formulated our development strategies. We aim to
grow bigger and stronger, as well as adjust and optimize the structure
of our principal businesses, maintain and enhance the Group’s core
competitiveness, build up the comprehensive strength for the sustainable
growth of the Group.
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STATEMENT FROM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

THRESHRES

By paying attention to and coping with the domestic development and
demand of the broadcasting digital television industry on an ongoing
basis, the Group will be able to further grab a foothold and penetrate
in the markets of three networks integration business in digital cable
television and wireless digital television value-added services industry,
continue to improve the digital television business in the contracted
regions, expand into new markets, keep strengthening the research and
development and promotion of the application of the core technology
and products in this field, upgrade the overall quality of its services and
the scale of operation of the digital television business, and achieve a
greater and better economies of scale in order to maintain the Group’s
competitive advantage in the digital television broadcasting industry.

The Group will continue to maintain and enhance its technological
advantages and leading position in the areas of wireless audio baseband
integrated circuits and multimedia transmission as well as information
security technology products, identify new markets and increase its
market shares and new sources of growth in revenue.

Looking onward, the Group will continue to capitalize on the vast
domestic demand in the PRC, formulate a strategic plan for sustainable
development, optimize and adjust the structure of principal businesses
for aggressive market expansion. By captializing on the established and
effective business operation model, sophisticated experience in business
development and long-term partnership and customer base, the Group
will be ableto achieve a more sustainable competitive edge for the
business development for maximizing the shareholders’ interests and
social benefits. The Board expects that this will bring about long-term
and greater benefits to the Group.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
extend our sincere gratitude to our customers, business partners and
shareholders for their continuous and valuable support to the Group.
| would also like to express my heartfelt appreciation to our dedicated
staff members for their hard work and efforts that have contributed to the
sustained growth of the Group over the period.

Xiao Yan
Chief Executive Officer

25 March 2013
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEER R DT

THE GROUP

The Group recorded a decline in its overall results for the
six months ended 31 December 2012 as compared to the overall
business results for the financial year ended 30 June 2012. In
response to the market structure and based on the overall plan of
the Group, the Group has substantially completed the transition
from the wireless television operation to the digital cable television
operation.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the six months ended 31 December 2012, the Group has been
operating the following major business segments:

Digital cable television business

Based on the progress of its own development, in response to the
general market and under the overall business plan of the Group,
and capturing the opportunity brought from the “three networks
integration” policies, the Group has made a transition from the
wireless television operation to the digital cable television operation
and actively provided solutions for digital cable television reform
projects, achieving an improvement in research and development,
design, production and sales and establishing its position as an
operator of integrated television broadcasting business in the
industry.

With the business expansion and active operation in 2012, the
Group has already obtained the operation rights on 12.2 million
cable television subscribers in such provinces as Jiangxi, Anhui,
Hebei and Shanxi for a term of 12 to 15 years, and the operation
rights on the wireless television value-added business in Hebei
province. The Group has fully completed its transformation,
and has established its position as an operator of television
broadcasting integrated businesses in the industry.

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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The Group has achieved stable progress for its network
construction project in the integration of the three networks. The
revenue for the six months ended 31 December 2012 amounted
to approximately HK$65.8 million (around 22% of the total revenue
of the Group). The revenue comprised operational revenues
from basic subscription and other value added technology
as well as market service income arising from the 1,000,000
subscribers of the Hebei rural television network and sales of
digital cable television business related products. The basic
network construction for approximately 400,000 subscribers of
broadcasting television in the rural areas is underway and expected
to be completed in 2013.

With the assistance of externally engaged market and technology
experts, the Group has made steady progress on the development
of client channels for the technology development, products and
services, which set up a solid platform for further sales of products
in the cable market. The Group won the bid for supply of MOCA
products in Ningxia Autonomous Region (throughout the province),
and will commence the supply soon.

The Group’s existing operation right on value-added business
covers areas such as Anhui and Nanchang of Jiangxi province.
The Group has signed contracts on establishment and operation of
value-added business for 5.5 million cable television subscribers.
In Hebei province and Datong of Shanxi province, the Group
has signed contracts on establishment and operation of basic
television business for 3.7 million cable television subscribers.
The platform construction and testing for the 301 remote medical
treatment project have been completed and the sale has already
commenced, with contracted units and intended contracted
units located in provinces and cities such as Shaanxi, Liaoning,
Guangdong and Xinjiang.

The convenience payment project throughout Hebei province
cooperated with Jildt& —Ki@ (Hebei One-Card) and 4t
SRRl (Beijing Haike Rongtong) stepped into the stage of
implementation.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEER R DT
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BEENWNR M

Wireless digital television value-added
services

The Group has signed contracts for the operation of wireless digital
mobile television in Hebei province, under which 60,000 display
panels will be installed in public areas and value-added advertising
business will be carried out. During the first quarter of 2012, the
Group has completed the construction of 1,000 display panels in
public areas.

Wireless digital terrestrial television
network equipment integration business

Steady progress has been made on the sales of set-top boxes and
related products during the six months ended 31 December 2012.
This business segment made less contribution to the net profit of
the Group as a result of relatively substantial impact from the weak
market.

Information safety technology business

As a selected enterprise of China Telecom Group, the Group has
participated in the construction of telecommunication base stations
in Yunnan, Jiangsu, Hebei, Heilongjiang, Henan and Zhejiang
provinces in China, leading the Group to enter into a lucrative
telecommunication operators’ market with consumption capacity
of hundreds of billions dollars every year. With the promotion of
three networks integration in telecommunication, the business
focuses of three largest operators have shifted to mobile internet
and fiber to the home (“FTTH”). The Group’s newly developed
base environment-controlling products and optical fiber quick
connectors are completely compatible with the business modes of
these telecom operators. In addition, the Group has been listed in
the suppliers’ lists for centralized procurements of China Unicom
and China Telecom Corporation and had already won the bid
from, and commenced to make supply, to the Jilin branch of China
Unicom. The telecommunication business will definitely be a new
profit driver of the Group in the future.

Heng Xin China Holdmgs Limited Annual Report 2012
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEER R DT

The system integration projects have brought much contribution
to such areas as medical services, plant integration, and
government’s centralized procurement by utilizing the Group’s
leading encryption technology. With the growing coverage and
continuous improvement of remote medical projects, the Group
will continue to provide systems and equipment, and supporting
software to service providers. The Group has won the bids and
been shortlisted in several large government procurements such
as Beihang University, China Southern Airlines, Xinhua Airlines and
University of Technology.

Wireless digital audio products business

The demand from overseas customers in this business segment
further increased as a result of the stronger demand from overseas
market in 2012. The number of new customers in the export
segment of the Group has been significantly increased. The
Group’s market share has been growing correspondingly with the
expanding scale of cooperation with the domestic and overseas
clients over the past few years.

PROSPECTS

The development plan of the Group for the coming five years
still focuses on the growth of the four major business segments,
namely, digital cable television, wireless digital television value-
added services, information safety technology business and
wireless digital audio products business.

In response to the general market and capturing the opportunity
brought from the “three networks integration” policies introduced
by the State Council in January 2010, the Group has made a
transition from the wireless television operation to the digital cable
television operation in the past years. The accelerating urbanization
and the increase in personal consumable income of the PRC
residents have created stable demand for the digital television
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BEER R DT

market. As a result, the demand and sale price of data transfer
cables which are required for the Group to develop its last-mile
network infrastructure, have been increasing significantly. The
acquisition of 25% of the issued share capital of Xinmu will create
synergy effect to the Group’s existing businesses in terms of
accessing to a stable source of supply of high quality data transfer
cables at a reasonable price.

The disposal of Beijing Zhongguang can allow the Group to focus
its resources, apply the proceeds from the disposal on its principal
business of cable television and wireless digital television value-
added services, and improve the financial strength of the Group.

Based on the current progress of the network construction of
the Group, it shall be expected to complete the construction of
a network for approximately 1.4 million basic cable television
broadcasting subscribers and 300,000 value-added cable
television broadcasting subscribers, and the installation of 12,000
electronic advertising display panels in the contracted regions in
2013. Moreover, the management expects to sign contracts with
approximately 3 million new televisions broadcasting subscribers,
generating a promising growth in profit and long-term value for the
Group.

The Group has won the bid and will deliver 10,000 units of MOCA
core network devices and approximately 50,000 units of MOCA
terminal in the coming two years. The Group has formed a
partnership in Ningxia for entering the MOCA market. In Liaoning,
the Group has made a breakthrough in market expansion, having
sold devices with aggregated value of millions of dollars, and
expects to achieve a further breakthrough in the future. The
Group’s profit will be significantly benefit from the cooperation of
China Mobile and the television broadcasting operators under three
networks integration in the future. As low frequency technology
was used by the television broadcasting operators in prior years,
only high frequency technology can be used under the cooperation
of China Mobile and the television broadcasting operators.
Therefore, the sales of MOCA will increase to a greater extent.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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For the telecommunication business, the Group, aiming at
capturing more market shares and building a new profit driver,
commenced to arrange its human, material and financial resources
for the development of its own products and joint production
with foreign manufacturers to meet the demand on solution
products for mobile internet and FTTH projects from three major
telecommunication operators, namely China Mobile, China Telecom
and China Unicom.

For the wireless digital audio products business, orders for mass
production from new projects had been secured in respect of
the fourth quarter of 2012. It is expected that the Group can
greatly expand its market share. Among all, Apple accessories
project is a highlight to the Group’s business growth. The Group
has been planning to explore the domestic market to expand the
domestic market share before there is any greater impact on the
export market, and has achieved remarkable results in terms of
market shares and sales volume, which will be a great start for
the domestic sales market. The Group will strive to enter into new
consumer and automotive electronics markets in order to bring a
new and rapid profit driver for the Group.

In the next three years, the Group will definitely continue to
promote, upgrade and develop the Group’s technological know-
how gained throughout these years, and to identify customers’
new demand and new customers. These are all essential to the
sustainable growth of the Group.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the six months ended 31 December 2012, the Group recorded
a consolidated revenue of approximately HK$300.3 million, while the
revenue for the year ended 30 June 2012 was approximately HK$612.5
million. Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company was
approximately HK$1.2 million, as compared to approximately HK$152.9
million for the year ended 30 June 2012. Basic earnings per share was
approximately HKO0.04 cent, as compared to approximately HK6.12
cents for the year ended 30 June 2012,
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Revenue

During the six months ended 31 December 2012, the revenue of the
Group was principally derived from the following business segments.

(i) Digital cable television business

The revenue for the six months ended 31 December 2012
generated from the digital cable television business amounted
to approximately HK$65.8 million (year ended 30 June 2012:
HK$153.5 million) or approximately 22% (period ended 30 June
2012: 25%) of the total revenue for this financial period, including
operational revenues from basic subscription and other value
added technology as well as market service income arising from
the 1,000,000 subscribers of the Hebei rural television network and
sales of digital cable television business related products.

(i) Wireless digital television value-added services business

Revenue generated from the wireless digital television value-added
services business for the six months ended 31 December 2012
amounted to approximately HK$45.8 million (year ended 30 June
2012: HK$48.1 million) or 15% (year ended 30 June 2012: 8%) of
the total revenue.

(iii) Information safety technology business

The revenue for the six months ended 31 December 2012
generated from the encrypted integrated circuits and the derived
integrated business amounted to approximately HK$2.9 million
(year ended 30 June 2012: HK$101.5 million) or approximately 1%
(year ended 30 June 2012: 17%) of the total revenue.

(iv) Wireless digital audio products business

The revenue for the six months ended 31 December 2012
generated from the wireless digital audio products business
and the related technical services amounted to approximately
HK$37.1 million (year ended 30 June 2012: HK$183.5 million) or
approximately 12% (year ended 30 June 2012: 30%) of the total
revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER R DT

(v) Wireless digital terrestrial television network equipment
integration business

The revenue for the six months ended 31 December 2012
generated from the wireless digital terrestrial television network
equipment integration business amounted to approximately
HK$148.7 million (year ended 30 June 2012: HK$125.8 million) or
approximately 50% (year ended 30 June 2012: 20%) of the total
revenue.

Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit margin of the Group was approximately 12% (year ended 30
June 2012: 42%).

Other Income

Other income amounted to approximately HK$12.1 million (year ended
30 June 2012: HK$62.0 million).

Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses were approximately HK$74.2 million for the
six months ended 31 December 2012, compared to approximately
HK$131.2 million for the year ended 30 June 2012. Other operating
expenses included net loss on remeasurement of assets classified as
held for sale of approximately HK$28.2 million.

Finance Costs

Finance costs amounted to approximately HK$4.5 million (year ended 30
June 2012: HK$14.2 million), of which approximately HK$4.2 million (year
ended 30 June 2012: HK$14.0 million) represented non-cash effective
interest expenses on convertible notes issued by the Company before
their full conversions.
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately HK$265.6
million, representing an increase of approximately 14% compared to
HK$232.4 million as at 30 June 2012. The increase was mainly due to
the purchases of components, such as underground cable lines, optical
transmission equipment and other equipment to enable the delivery of
the intended digital cable television services in different target regions
and pilot cities, which were purchased from the local television operators
and other suppliers selected by the Group.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets amounted to approximately HK$127.7 million,
representing an increase of approximately 3% compared to HK$123.5
million as at 30 June 2012. As the wireless television business of the
Group was shrinking, the Group disposed some of its idol proprietary
technology and intangible assets developed within this business for
higher considerations during the six months ended 31 December 2012.

Inventories

Inventories amounted to approximately HK$29.2 million, representing
an decrease of approximately 83% compared to HK$174.4 million as at
30 June 2012. The inventories comprised set-top boxes, software and
equipment for trading.
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Trade receivables

Total trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) amounted
to approximately HK$399.2 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 11% compared to HK$448.0 million as at 30 June 2012.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision (year ended 30 June 2012: HK48.4 million)
for impairment is necessary in respect of individual balance of trade
receivables as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

According to current government policy in China, there is usually only
one state-owned broadcasting entity in each province or region that has
the authority to operate television broadcasting. Typically such a state-
owned broadcasting entity will delegate responsibilities to its subsidiaries
or its business partners to perform such work as digital television
network construction, conversion, digitalisation and related technical
standard setting in the province or region. As such the broadcasting
entity has a virtual monopolistic status in the relevant province or region,
free from competition from foreign or other domestic television operators.
With such special status, these state-owned broadcasting entities benefit
from the growth in demand in television digitalisation and value added
services in their respective areas. In this industry, the payment terms
of the subscribers for the services are predominantly on a cash/pay in
advance basis. Taking into consideration the aforesaid special status of
the state-owned broadcasting entities in each province or region, the
room for expansion of their businesses and their practice of requiring
advance cash payment from subscribers, the Directors consider that the
risk of bad debts relating to these trade receivables to be extremely low.
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Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Prepayment, deposits and other receivables amounted to approximately
HK$188.9 million as at 31 December 2012, a decrease of approximately
50% when compared to HK$375.7 million as at 30 June 2012. The
increase was mainly due to prepayments to suppliers for purchase of
goods and services as a result of the Group’s increased engagements
for implementation of its businesses during the period under review.
The prepayment was made in the Group’s ordinary and usual course of
business.

Trade payables

Trade payables amounted to approximately HK$48.6 million as at
31 December 2012, a decrease of approximately 4% when compared to
HK$50.6 million as at 30 June 2012.

Other payables and accruals

Other payables and accruals amounted to approximately HK$36.7 million
as at 31 December 2012, an increase of approximately 187% when
compared to HK$12.8 million as at 30 June 2012.

Bond's

On 28 December 2010, an aggregate of HK$200,000,000 principal
amount of redeemable convertible bonds (“Convertible Bonds”) were
issued to Sandmartin International Holdings Limited (“Sandmartin”).
Further details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 17
December 2010.

On 27 December 2012, the Company redeemed the Convertible Bonds
upon their maturity.

On the same day, the Company and Sandmartin entered into a
subscription agreement pursuant to which Sandmartin subscribed
for the bond in an aggregate principal amount of HK$100 million. The
bond carries interest at the rate of 6% per annum and will mature for
redemption on 26 December 2014. Details are set out in the Company’s

announcement dated 27 December 2012.
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On 22 November 2012, the Company entered into a conditional placing
and underwriting agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) with Emperor
Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”) pursuant to which the Placing
Agent agreed to act as placing agent for the purposes of arranging
subscribers for the issue of (i) the First Tranche Bonds in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$50 million on a fully underwritten basis; and (ii)
the Second Tranche Bonds in an aggregate principal amount of up to
HK$100 million on a best effort basis. The Placing of the First Tranche
Bonds was completed on 21 December 2012 in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the Placing Agreement. The bond carries interest
at the rate of 6% per annum and will mature for redemption on 20
December 2014. Details are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 22 November 2012 and 21 December 2012.

Grant of Options

To capture the growth in the digital television market in the PRC, the
Company has engaged the services of two consultants to provide
marketing services and financial services to the Group and conditionally
granted to each of the consultants the option to subscribe for
20,000,000 shares at an exercise price of HK$0.32 per share. Details of
the agreements are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 20
November 2012.

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

The Board announced on 12 November 2012 the change of financial
year end date of the Company from 30 June to 31 December to align the
financial year end date of the Company with that of its subsidiaries which
were incorporated in the People’s Republic of China. The consolidated
financial statements presented, therefore, covered a six-month period
from 1 July 2012 to 31 December 2012.
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PLACING OF NEW SHARES

On 18 December 2012, the Company completed a placing of shares to
two independent investors and net proceeds amounted to approximately
HK$89.9 million, thereby providing the Group with additional cash
resources for its operations and expansion initiatives.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 166 full-time employees in
Hong Kong and the PRC (30 June 2012: 188). The total employees’
remuneration, including that of the Directors, amounted to approximately
HK$11.9 million (year ended 30 June 2012: HK$25.3 million).

The Group continues to provide remuneration packages to employees
according to market practices, their experience and performance.
Remuneration policy is basically determined with reference to individual
performance as well as the financial results of the Group. Remuneration
to staff will be revised from time to time when warranted considering
the performances of staff. Other benefits include medical insurance
scheme and contribution of statutory mandatory provident fund for the
employees. The Group also has a share option scheme whereby qualified
participants may be granted options to acquire shares of the Company.
There has been no major change in staff remuneration policies during the
six months ended 31 December 2012.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group primarily financed its operations with internally generated
cash flows. As at 31 December 2012, the cash and bank balances
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$13.1 million (30 June
2012: HK$149.0 million). The Renminbi denominated balances of
approximately HK$8.1 million (30 June 2012: HK$128.1 million) were
placed with licensed banks in the PRC and the conversion of these
balances into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulation of

foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.
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During the six months ended 31 December 2012, the Group has net
cash outflow of approximately HK48.6 million (year ended 30 June
2012: cash inflow of HK$50.5 million) from its operating activities, net
cash outflow of approximately HK$89.0 million (year ended 30 June
2012: HK$176.0 million) from its investing activities and net cash inflow
of approximately HK$45.1 million (year ended 30 June 2012: outflow of
HK$17.8 million) from its financing activities.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had current assets of approximately
HK$1,220.3 million (30 June 2012: HK$1,151.5 million), while its current
liabilities were approximately HK$228.4 million (30 June 2012: HK$338.3
million). The current ratio (current assets to current liabilities) of the Group
was approximately 5.34 (30 June 2012: 3.40); and its gearing ratio (total
borrowings over shareholders’ funds) was approximately 0.08 (30 June
2012: 0.00). Net asset value per share was approximately HK$0.66 as at
31 December 2012 (30 June 2012: HK$0.69).

During the six months ended 31 December 2012, an aggregate of
300,000,000 new shares were issued by the Company.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the six months ended 31 December 2012, the majority of the
Group’s income and expenses were denominated in Renminbi and
Hong Kong dollars. Up to 31 December 2012, the management of the
Company is of the opinion that the Group has insignificant exposure to
foreign exchange risk. As a result, the Group did not use any financial
instruments for hedging against fluctuation in foreign exchange for the
six months ended 31 December 2012. Nevertheless, the management
of the Company will closely monitor and from time to time reassess the
exchange risk exposures of the Group and enter into non-speculative
hedging arrangements if considered necessary.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2012, bank deposits amounting to HK$7,055,000
(30 June 2012: Nil) have been pledged to banks for short term
loans amounting to HK$7,596,000 (30 June 2012: Nil) granted to
subsidiaries. The Company has also provided guarantee to the extent of
HK$4,000,000 (30 June 2012: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER R DT

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (30 June 2012: Nil).

ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

On 20 November 2012, America Assets Holding Group Limited (“America
Assets”) and Star Hub Investments Limited (“Star Hub”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement, pursuant to which Star Hub conditionally agreed
to sell to America Assets, and America Assets conditionally agreed
to purchase from Star Hub, the entire issued share capital of Magic
Golden Limited, at a cash consideration of RMB328 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$403.4 million). The disposed group includes k3R
fh ERBRIE AR A F)(Beijing Zhongguang Shitong Technology Co.,
Ltd (“Beijing Zhongguang”)) which engages principally in the wireless
digital terrestrial television network equipment integrated business,
and research, design, manufacturing and trading of information safety
products. Details of the disposal are set out in the Company’s circular
dated 17 December 2012. The disposal was completed on 24 January
2013. Details of assets classified as held for sale and the net loss at the
disposal based on the figures as at 31 December 2012 are set out in
notes to the consolidated financial statements 25 and 44(a).

On 7 December 2012, Jt R& B EREHEAR A F] (Beijing Jingiao
Hengtai Technology Co., Ltd (“Beijing Jingiao”)), an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, and E&F BT ERMNERA
a] (Yantai Xinchao Industry Co., Ltd (“Xinchao”)) entered into a sale
and purchase agreement, pursuant to which Xinchao agreed to sell to
Beijing Jingiao, and Beijing Jingiao agreed to purchase from Xinchao,
25% equity interests in & ¥ A EBEFR A A (Yantai Xinmu Cable Co.,
Ltd (“Xinmu”)) at a cash consideration of RMB139 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$170.97 million). Xinmu is principally engaged in (i)
production and sales of small physical foamed cable, small coaxial cable,
access network, and high-speed data transfer cable for broadband
transmission cable television (CATV) and (i) property development
in the PRC. Details of the acquisition are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 17 December 2012. The acquisition is yet to be
completed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER R DT

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries or significant investment during the six months
ended 31 December 2012.

DIVIDEND

The Board of the Company does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the six months ended 31 December 2012 (30 June 2012:
Nil).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Heng Xin China
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present this Corporate
Governance Report for the six months ended 31 December 2012.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board in
ensuring high standards of corporate governance in the interests of
its shareholders and is committed to identifying and formalizing best
practices appropriate to the needs of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasize a
quality board, sound internal controls, transparency and accountability to
all shareholders. The Company has applied the principles set out in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (“CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“GEM Listing Rules”). Except for the deviations from
code provisions A.2.1, A.6.7 and E.1.2 which are explained below, the
Company was in compliance with all code provisions set out in the CG
Code during the period from 1 July 2012 to 31 December 2012.

Distinctive Roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

The code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman
and chief executive officer should be clearly established and set out in
writing.

Mr. Xiao Yan as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, supported
by the senior management, is responsible for managing the Group’s
businesses and responsibilities, implementing major strategies, executing
the Board decisions and coordinating the daily operations of the
Group. Up to the date of this report, the position of Chairman remained
vacant. In view of the current operations of the Group, the management

considered that there is no imminent need to change the arrangement.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

Attendance of general meeting

The code provision A.6.7 requires that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors shall attend general meetings
and develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
The code provision E.1.2 requires that the chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting. He should also invite the chairmen
of the audit, remuneration, nomination and any other committees (as
appropriate) to attend.

Due to their temporary business activities and unexpected engagement,
the non-executive Director and two independent non-executive Directors
(including the chairman of the audit, remuneration and nomination
committee) were unable to attend the annual general meeting held on
17 December 2012 which did not comply with the code provisions A.6.7
and E.1.2.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.49 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as its Code of Conduct for
Securities Transactions by Directors throughout the six months ended
31 December 2012. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the required
standard of dealings regarding securities transactions by Directors during
the six months ended 31 December 2012.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Company and
is entitled to delegate its powers to any executive Director, committees of
the Board and the management team. The Board is primarily responsible
for approving and monitoring the Company’s major corporate matters,
the evaluation of the performance of the Company and oversight of the
management. Specific tasks that the Board delegates to the Company’s
management include the implementation of strategies approved by the
Board, determining the policy for the corporate governance, monitoring
of operating budgets, the implementation of internal controls procedures,
and ensuring of compliance with relevant statutory requirements and
other rules and regulations. The Board is directly accountable to the
shareholders and is responsible for preparing the accounts.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven members,
consisting of three executive Directors, a non-executive Director and
three independent non-executive Directors.

Executive directors

Mr. Xiao Yan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Li Tao
Mr. Qiu Bin

Non-executive director

Mr. Xu Lei

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Leung Wo Ping JP
Mr. Dong Shi
Mr. Hu Dingdong

Each Director has relevant experience, competence and skills appropriate
to the business requirements of the Company. The biographical details
of the Directors are set out on pages 36 to 40 of the Annual Report. To
the knowledge of the Directors, the Board members have no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships with each other.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board met regularly during the year with additional meetings
arranged if and when required. Eleven board meetings were held during
the six months ended 31 December 2012 and the attendance record
of each member of the Board is set out in the table on page 30 of the
annual report. Directors are appropriately notified in advance of the
meetings with proposed agenda and are free to contribute alternative
views at meetings. Major decisions are only adopted after deliberation at
Board meetings. Directors who are considered having conflicts of interest
or who have material interest in the proposed transactions or issues to
be discussed will not be counted in the quorum of meetings and will
abstain from voting on relevant resolutions.

Minutes of the Board/Committee meetings are kept by the company
secretary and are open for inspection by the Directors. All Directors have
access to the company secretary, who is responsible for ensuring that
the Board procedures are complied with, and in consultation with the
compliance officer, advising the Board on compliance matters.

GENERAL MEETING

During the six months ended 31 December 2012, 1 general meeting
of the Company, being the 2012 annual general meeting, was held on
17 December 2012 and the attendance record of each member of the
Board is set out in the table on page 30 of the annual report.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors
are appointed for a specific term, and they are subject to retirement and
re-election in accordance with the Bye-Laws. They are persons of high
calibre, with academic and professional qualifications in the fields of
media, taxation, legal and financial markets. With their experience gained
from various sectors, they provide strong support towards the effective
discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his independence pursuant to
the rules 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers all independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established an audit committee with written terms of
reference in accordance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
audit committee comprises three members who are independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Leung Wo Ping JP (Chairman), Mr. Dong
Shi and Mr. Hu Dingdong.

The principal duties of the audit committee are to review and supervise
the financial reporting process and internal control procedures of the
Company, and to review the appointment of external auditors on an
annual basis as well as to ensure independence of the continuing auditor.

The audit committee held two meetings during the six months ended 31
December 2012 and the attendance of each member of the committee
is set out in the table on page 30 of the annual report.

During the six months ended 31 December 2012, the audit committee
discharged its duties by reviewing the financial matters, quarterly,
interim and annual financial reports, financial statements and internal
control system as well as audit related matters of the Company. The
audit committee discussed the above as appropriate with the executive
Directors, the management and the auditors of the Company, and made
recommendations to the Board. The audited financial statements for the
six months ended 31 December 2012 have been reviewed by the audit
committee and approved for issue by the Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a remuneration committee since 12 April 2005.
The existing committee is made up of the Company'’s three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Leung Wo Ping JP (Chairman), Mr.
Dong Shi and Mr. Hu Dingdong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

The principal responsibilities of the remuneration committee include
the formulation of the Company’s remuneration policy, the approval or
recommendation of remuneration packages for the Directors and the
senior management, and the review and approval of performance based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives. According
to the terms of reference, the remuneration committee should meet at
least twice a year.

During the six months ended 31 December 2012, the remuneration
committee held one meeting to review the remuneration of the newly
appointed executive Director. The attendance record of each member of
the committee is set out in the table on page 30 of the annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a nomination committee since 12 April 2005.
The existing committee is made up of the Company’s three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Leung Wo Ping JP (Chairman), Mr.
Dong Shi and Mr. Hu Dingdong.

The principal responsibilities of the nomination committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board; to identify individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members and make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorship; and to
make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or reappointment of directors and succession planning for
directors. According to the terms of reference, the nomination committee
should meet at least twice a year. During the six months ended 31
December 2012, the nomination committee held one meeting and the
attendance record of each member of the committee is set out in the
table on page 30 of the annual report.

The Board has the power to appoint Director(s) pursuant to the Bye-laws
of the Company. During the six months ended 31 December 2012, the
Board has appointed one new Director.
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List of Directors and the attendance records of the Directors
and members of the committees for the six months ended
31 December 2012

Audit Remuneration Nomination
AGM/SGM The Board Committee Committee Committee
BRRBEAE/
BRERAE 28 EVEEE Fzgeg REZES.
Total Number of Mestings SERBRY 1 11 1 1 1
Number of meetings LR/ BEBLE
attended/eligible to attend EE P
Executive Directors: HITES .
Mr. Xiao Yan HERAE 11 11/11
Mr. Li Tao FEEE 0/1 11/11
Mr. Feng Yongming BB E
(resigned with effect (HZE—=F
from 1 January 2013) —A—HRBEHE) 11 10/11
Non-Executive Director: FHTES :
Mr. Xu Lei ®REEE 0/1 11/11
Independent BYFHTES:
Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Leung Wo Ping JP ZRTRE A Fet 01 8/11 17 171 11
Mr. Dong Shi BEO%E 0 11/11 11 11 11

Mr. Hu Dingdong

HERTA
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TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. Each
newly appointed Director would receive an induction package covering
the Group’s businesses and the statutory and regulatory obligations of
a director of a listed company. The Group also provides briefings and
other training to develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills.
The Group continuously updates Directors on the latest developments
regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of
good corporate governance practices. Circulars or guidance notes are
issued to Directors and senior management where appropriate, to ensure
awareness of best corporate governance practices.

During the period from 1 July 2012 to 31 December 2012, the Directors
participated in the following trainings:

Name of Directors

EE IR XE

EEVRBRNEZEREM - BRENEAEZ
EENeRREHERAEEREL LT RARE
FEREREERTZABTM - ARETEE
HEN REMIE - BEFSELRERAE R
Bt - ARERKEREAHAIZER ETHRRR
HtERAEERECRNEMTES - AR
ERETRERIRRERRELRFEEER
FRZAZ YREERSREERE(HAE)
BHBRKEIES]  ARERERRELRERR
e

R E——F+A—BE-_ZT——F+_-H
—+—HHE EFLL2HEUTEI

Type of Trainings

EELE EINE R
(Note 1)
(FEE1)
Mr. Xiao Yan HESXE A B
Mr. Li Tao TEEAE A B
Mr. Xu Lei RELE B
Mr. Leung Wo Ping B A B
Mr. Dong Shi BOAE A B
Mr. Hu Dingdong AR R AE A B
Mr. Feng Yongming (Note 2) KBRS A (FiEE2) A B
Notes: S
(1) A attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums relating to (1)  A: HEEHESRECHNE R Haz

directors’ duties

B: reading newspaper, journals and updates relating to the economy,
general business or directors’ duties etc.

2) Mr. Feng Yongming resigned as a Director with effect from 1 January 2013.
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CONFLICT OF INTEREST

If a Director has a conflict of interest in relation to a transaction or
proposal to be considered by the Board, the individual is required
to declare such interest and to abstain from voting. The matter is
considered at a Board meeting attended by Directors who have no
material interest in the transaction.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Cheng Kit Sum Clara (“Ms. Cheng”) is the Financial Controller and
the Company Secretary of the Company. The biographical details of
Ms. Cheng are set out on page 39 under the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management”. During the six months ended 31 December
2012, Ms. Cheng has duly complied with the relevant professional
training requirement under Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the six months ended 31 December 2012, the Company is
required to pay an aggregate of approximately HK$650,000 (30 June
2012: HK$908,000) to the external auditors for their audit services and
Nil (30 June 2012: HK$298,000) for their non-audit services.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the
place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting,
other than an annual general meeting, shall be called a special general
meeting. The Board may whenever it thinks fit call special general
meetings.
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Shareholders to convene a special general
meeting

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting of the Company
according to the provisions as set out in the Bye-Laws and the
Companies Act of Bermuda. The procedures shareholders can use to
convene a special general meeting are set out in the document entitled
“Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a
Director”, which is currently available on the Company’s website.

Putting enquiries by shareholders to the Board

Shareholders and the investors may at any time make a request for
the Company’s information to the extent such information is publicly
available. Any such questions shall be first directed to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Procedures for putting forward proposals by
shareholders at shareholders’ meeting

The number of members necessary for a requisition for putting forward a
proposal at a general meeting shall be:

(@  any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights at the date of the requisition; or

(b)  not less than one hundred members.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall be
deposited, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in giving notice of the proposed resolution or circulating any
necessary statement, at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong in the case of:

(i) a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six weeks
before the meeting; and

(i)  any other requisition, not less than one week before the meeting.
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The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that the
requisition is proper and in order, the Board will proceed with the
necessary procedures.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 17.47(4) of the GEM Listing Rules, any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll except where
the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates
purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a
show of hands. As such, all the resolutions set out in the notice of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will be voted by

poll.

PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The respective responsibilities of the Directors and the auditors for
preparing financial statements of the Company are set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 53 to 55 of the annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal controls of
the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is committed
to implementing an effective and sound internal control system to
safeguard the interests of shareholders and the Company’s assets.
The management of the Group is delegated with the responsibility from
time to time to implement and maintain the Board’s policies on risk
management and control. At least annually, the significant internal control
system is reviewed with the audit committee.

The Group has engaged an independent international professional
accounting firm to conduct a review on its systems of internal controls
and to improve the Group’s strategic planning, cash management,
management in business operations, budgeting and financial reporting,

supply and sales chain management and human resource management.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has disclosed all necessary information to the
shareholders and investors in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules
and the Hong Kong Company Ordinances, and reported the Company’s
performance through various communication channels. These include
annual and extraordinary general meetings, quarterly, interim and annual
reports, various notices, announcements and circulars. Regular press
conferences and briefing meetings with investors, shareholders and
analysts are set up from time to time on updated information of the
Group.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xiao Yan (“Mr. Xiao”), aged 51, is the Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) of the Company and an executive Director. Mr. Xiao is currently
also a director of Beijing Jingiao Hengtai Technology Co. Ltd. Mr. Xiao
is a senior economist in the PRC and has over 25 years of experience
in corporate planning, business development, corporate finance,
investment, consulting and banking. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xiao
was the deputy general manager of the capital operational department
(investment department) of China Potevio Company Limited where
he was responsible for overall business planning, management and
investments. From 1997 to 2006, Mr. Xiao was the deputy general
manager of China Everbright Bank and the Vice President of its Wuhan
branch where he oversaw the overall operations. Mr. Xiao had previously
held senior positions in international companies, and consulting
and accounting firms. Mr. Xiao holds a master degree of business
administration and is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Xiao was appointed as an executive Director
and the CEO in August 2008 and March 2009 respectively.

Mr. Li Tao (“Mr. Li”), aged 44, joined the Group as an executive Director
in April 2008. Mr. Li had been the vice president of Yunnan Baiyao
Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Mr. Li has over 20 years of experience
in the administration and management of different companies and
businesses.

Mr. Qiu Bin (“Mr. Qiu”), aged 40, was graduated from Beijing Union
University with a bachelor degree in Business Administration. From
1992 to 2003, he was the department manager at the Bank of China
Limited, Beijing Branch responsible for a wide range of banking and
credit duties. From 2004 to 2008, he joined the Shanghai Pudong
Development Bank, Beijing Branch and served as the business manager
in charge of marketing and credit functions. Mr. Qiu then became the
deputy general manager and director of the finance department in Beijing
Dong Fang Chengrui Investment Consultants, Ltd. (“Dong Fang”). He
was responsible for the overall operation and strategic decisions of the
foreign investment and financing businesses of Dong Fang. Mr. Qiu is
well versed with Chinese domestic banking system, settlement, foreign
exchange and credit areas. He also has extensive experience in the fields
of financial management and securities investment.

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Xu Lei (“Mr. Xu”), aged 42, joined the Group as a non-executive
Director in November 2009. Mr. Xu has had over 15 years of senior
executive and operational experiences in the fields of mass media,
technological development and cultural promotion in China since
completion of a graduate study at Tongji University in China. Mr. Xu had
been a senior manager of The China International Cultural Exchange
Centre from 1997 to 2001; the president and editor-in-chief of Travel
& Leisure Magazine from 2002 to the present. Since 2003, Mr. Xu
has gained substantial corporate governance and operational control
experiences in the field of broadcasting and media communications
in China including as the vice president of an audio and video
publishing house, an executive director of a communication technology
development company and a cultural investment firm respectively.
Through his association with these enterprises, Mr. Xu has built a broad
based social and people resource network in the relevant industries.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Leung Wo Ping JP (“Mr. Leung”), aged 68, has been an
independent non-executive Director and the chairman of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee
since August 2009. Mr. Leung is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England of Wales. He is a tax professional, having
engaged in UK tax, Hong Kong tax and international tax planning for
over 30 years. Currently, he is a senior advisor of Crowe Horwath (HK)
CPA Limited, one of the major accounting firms in Hong Kong. Apart
from his professional work, Mr. Leung has actively participated in
community affairs since 1983. He had been a Regional Councillor for
5 years and a District Councillor for 18 years. He is also a Councillor
of the New Territories Heung Yee Kuk. He currently serves on various
Boards and Committees including the Hospital Authority’s Hospital
Governing Committee of Tai Po Hospital and United Christian Nethersole
Community Health Service Management Committee. He was a District
Advisor to the Hong Kong Branch of Xinhua News Agency before 1997.
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Mr. Leung was awarded a Badge of Honour by Her Majesty Queen
Elizabeth in 1994 for service to the community. He was also appointed
as a Justice of the Peace by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in 2000. Mr. Leung is currently an independent
non-executive director of Zhuguang Holdings Group Company Limited
which is listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Dong Shi (“Mr. Dong”), aged 49, has been an independent non-
executive Director since October 2008. Mr. Dong graduated from
Southwest University of Political Science and Law, China with a doctorate
degree in law. From 1998 to present, Mr. Dong is a veteran lawyer in
Shenzhen Rongguan Law Office. Currently, Mr. Dong is also a professor
of international law in Southwest University of Political Science and Law,
a researcher of the WTO Research Centre of Liaoning Academy of Social
Science, an arbitrator of Shenzhen Arbitration Committee, and a part
time professor of Chongging Technology and Business University.

Mr. Hu Dingdong (“Mr. Hu”), aged 46, has been an independent
non-executive Director since April 2009. Mr. Hu has over 20 years of
extensive experience in the investment industry and has had senior
management positions with various investment and securities firms in
China. Mr. Hu has completed a graduate program in finance from South
Western University of Finance and Economics in China. He also has
published numerous finance related articles in newspapers, magazines
and journals.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. Tang Bin (“Dr. Tang”), aged 43, is the Chief Technology Officer of
the Company. Dr. Tang possesses a profound knowledge, considerable
experience of product development in specialized field of technology,
and an extensive background in business management and operation.
Dr. Tang is currently responsible for the product development plan and
technology management of the Group. He is currently the chairman
and the legal representative of Shenzhen Champion Maxiumic Group
Co., Ltd., which is a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of the Company
principally responsible for digital cable television business and wireless
digital television business. Dr. Tang was the chairman and the legal
representative of Beijing Jingiao Hengtai Technology Co., Ltd. during
March 2008 to November 2010. Dr. Tang currently fills posts in many
social activities in mainland China, such as an evaluation expert of

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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innovation fund for small technology based firms of Ministry of Science
and Technology, a standard examination expert of the National
Information Standard Committee, a senior member of the bluetooth
technical professional committee of National 3C Union. Dr. Tang holds
a master degree in engineering from Graduate Institute of Chinese
Academy of Science and a doctor degree in engineering from University
of Science and Technology of China.

Mr. Lo Ka Wai (“Mr. Lo”), aged 44, has been the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company since December 2011. Mr. Lo graduated
from the University of Wollongong, Australia with a bachelor degree
in commerce. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and CPA Australia. He has more than 20 years of
experience in financial management and corporate finance. He had
been chief financial officer and/or company secretary for various listed
companies in Hong Kong and currently is an independent non-executive
director of Yusei Holding Limited which is listed on The Stock Exchange

of Hong Kong Limited.

Ms. Cheng Kit Sum Clara (“Ms. Cheng”), aged 41, is the Financial
Controller, Company Secretary and the authorised representative of
the Company. Ms. Cheng is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Ms. Cheng has over 19
years of experiences in corporate finance, financial management, legal
compliance and auditing. Prior to joining the Group in July 2008, Ms.
Cheng worked for a company listed on the Stock Exchange for 7 years
with her last position held as an executive director and the chief financial
officer. She has also worked at First Shanghai Capital Limited and
PricewaterhouseCoopers. Ms. Cheng holds a bachelor of arts degree in
accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. Tian Songlin (“Mr. Tian”), aged 43, currently is the general
manager, the chairman and the legal representative of Beijing Jingiao
Hengtai technology Co., Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and is responsible for the overall management of Beijing Jingiao. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Tian was the deputy general manager of Beijing
Hengtai Technologies Co. Ltd in where he was responsible for managing
the overall sales division. Mr. Tian was educated in Japan and obtained
a doctorate degree of economics. He has also worked at a real estate
company in Japan for four years.
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Mr. Yang Liu (“Mr. Yang”), aged 40, is currently the general manager,
the executive director and the legal representative of Huzhou Mingxin
Micro-Electronic Co., Ltd. Mr. Yang has a number of successful tape-
out experience in design and research directions for the CPU core and
system design. He has had extensive experience in management and
design of domestic and foreign well-known design companies. Mr. Yang
has designed various 8-digit CPU systems, and developed a high-speed,
four clock cycles and a single clock cycle 80C51 core. He has also
designed the high-performance 32-bit CPU and completed all design,
process of 0.18UM upper plate which is at 250MHz and above. Mr. Yang
has organized and led a number of national key science and technology
projects and is also a part-time professor of a first-class university in
mainland China. Mr. Yang holds a bachelor degree in engineering and a
master degree in business administration.

Mr. Wu Fred Fong (“Mr. Wu”), aged 65, is the consultant of the
Company. Mr. Wu joined the Group as an advisor in May 2008 and acted
as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company from 1 March 2009 to 18
July 2011. He has had considerable experience in auditing, corporate
planning, corporate finance, investment, consulting and administration
with public companies in Canada and Hong Kong including executive
directorship experience with a public company in Hong Kong for over
seven years. Mr. Wu holds a master of business administration degree
from the Schulich School of Business, York University in Canada. He is a
Chartered Accountant qualified in Canada and a fellow member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wu is currently
an independent non-executive director of China Public Procurement
Limited and Minth Group Limited, both companies are listed on the
Stock Exchange.

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESOHE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the six months
ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group
is principally engaged in digital cable television business, wireless digital
television value-added services, wireless digital terrestrial television
network equipment integrated business, research, design, development
on and manufacturing of electronic message security products,
integrated circuits, and the integrated circuit solutions and the related
services. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 45 to the financial statement.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the six months ended 31 December 2012
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 56.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the six
months ended 31 December 2012.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 15 to the financial statement.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital during the year are set out in note
33 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 59.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2012, the Company did not have any reserves
available for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie, as computed
in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended)
(80 June 2012: Nil). In addition, the Company’s share premium balance
of HK$1,394,441,024 as at 31 December 2012 (30 June 2012:
HK$1,307,760,000) may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the six months ended 31 December 2012 and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xiao Yan (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Li Tao

Mr. Qiu Bin (appointed with effect from 1 January 2013)

Mr. Feng Yongming (resigned with effect from 1 January 2013)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Xu Lei

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Leung Wo Ping JP
Mr. Dong Shi
Mr. Hu Dingdong

Annual Report 2012
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESOHE

Pursuant to Bye-law 87(1), at each annual general meeting one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not greater than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years. Pursuant to Bye-law 87(2),
any Director appointed pursuant to Bye-law 86(2) shall not be taken
into account in determining which particular Directors or the number
of Directors who are to retire by rotation. Mr. Qiu Bin, Mr. Xiao Yan and
Mr. Xu Lei shall retire from office and, being eligible to sit for re-election,
intend to offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 36 to 40.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of one year which will continue thereafter until
terminated by either party giving not less than three-month prior notice.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance (as defined in Rule 18.25 of the GEM Listing
Rules) to which the Company or its subsidiaries were a party and in
which a director and substantial shareholder of the Company has a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
period or at any time during the six months ended 31 December 2012.
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EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The terms of the share option schemes of the Company adopted on
13 March 2003 (the “2003 Scheme”) and on 30 December 2011 (the
“2011 Scheme”) (jointly the “Share Option Schemes”) are summarized as

follows:

(a) Purpose

(b)

(c)

The purpose of the Share Option Schemes is to enable the Group
to grant options to participants as incentives or rewards for their
contributions to the Group.

Participants

The Directors may, at their discretion, invite any person who is a
full time or part time employee or director of any member of the
Group, a consultant or agent of or adviser to any member of the
Group (the “Participants”), to take up options to subscribe for the
shares of the Company (the “Shares”).

Maximum number of Shares available for
issue

The maximum number of Shares available for issue after
considering the share options already granted under the 2003
Scheme and the 2011 Scheme are 146,520,300 and 245,709,199
respectively, representing approximately 5% and 8% of the Shares
of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2012 respectively.

Initially the maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Schemes or any other share option schemes adopted by the
Company (and to which the provisions of Chapter 23 of the GEM
Listing Rules are applicable) shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate
of the Shares in issue as at the date of adoption of the Share
Option Schemes. Options which have lapsed shall not be counted
in calculating the 10% limit. However (but subject to the 30% limit
referred to in this paragraph below), the Company may refresh this
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(d)

(e)

10% limit with shareholders’ approval provided that each such limit
(as refreshed) may not exceed the 10% of the Shares in issue as at
the date of the shareholders’ approval. Options previously granted
under the Share Option Schemes and any other share option
schemes adopted by the Company (and to which the provisions
of Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules are applicable), including
those outstanding, cancelled or lapsed in accordance with the
relevant scheme or exercised options, will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the limit to be refreshed. The Company may
seek separate approval by shareholders in general meeting for
granting options beyond the 10% limit provided that the options
in excess of the limit are granted only to the Participants specially
identified by the Company before such approval is sought.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Schemes and any other share option schemes
adopted by the Company (and to which the provisions of Chapter
23 of the GEM Listing Rules are applicable) must not exceed 30%
of the Shares in issue from time to time.

Maximum number of options to any one
individual

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company, the total
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted under the Share Option Schemes and any other
share option scheme of the Group (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) to each Participant in any 12-months
period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at the date of
grant.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be accepted by a participant within 28 days from
the date of the offer of grant of the option. A nominal aggregate
consideration of HK$1.00 for each grantee is payable on
acceptance of the grant of an option.

(d)
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(f)

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Schemes at any time during the period to be
determined and notified by the Board to each grantee, at the time
of making an offer of the grant of an option which shall not expire
later than 10 years from the date of grant of the option. Unless
otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer of
the grant of options to a grantee, there is neither any performance
target that needs to be achieved before the option can be
exercised nor any minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised.

Price of Shares

The subscription price for a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Schemes shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save
that such price will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant, which must be a business
day (and for this purpose shall be taken to be the date of the
Board meeting at which the Board proposes to grant the options);
(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (ii) The nominal value

of a Share.
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(g) Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The 2003 Scheme was expired on 12 March 2013, while the 2011
Scheme will remain in force before 29 December 2021.

(9) FEIR1ER B2 TR B A

—ET=

—==

FHZAZTARAREAR °

FHEER-T-=EZ A+
AR - =B ——FEER

=

Details of the employee share options are as follows: EEEREZFBNT
Number of Shares (Note 1)
RASE (HE1)
Granted Exercised As of Exercise
As of during the during the 31 December Date of price
Participants 1 July 2012 period period 2012 grant Exercise period per share
K iz
—B--F —E-Cf
28 tA-H RERERH REBRTE TZA=t-8 REAE TS SRITRE
HKS
BT
Directors and EZRIE
Chief executive THAE
Mr. Xiao Yan HERE 1,500,000 — — 1,500,000 18/04/2011  13/05/2011-12/03/2013 1.54
Mr. Li Tao FEEE 1,500,000 — - 1,500,000  13/04/2011  13/05/2011-12/03/2013 1.54
Mr. Xu Lei RELE 800,000 — — 800,000 13/04/2011  13/05/2011-12/03/2013 1.54
Mr. Leung Wo Ping PMEEAE 800,000 — — 800,000 13/04/2011  13/05/2011-12/03/2013 1.54
Mr. Dong Shi EREE 800,000 — — 800,000 13/04/2011  13/05/2011-12/03/2013 1.54
Mr. Hu Dingdong HERLE 800,000 — — 800,000 13/04/2011  13/05/2011-12/03/2013 1.54
Mr. Feng Yongming (Note 2)  &:KkER %4 (MiFE2) 1,500,000 — — 1,500,000 13/04/2011  13/05/2011-12/03/2013 1.54
Subtotal N 7,700,000 — — 7,700,000
Other participants HthgmE 22,300,000 — — 22,300,000 13/04/2011  13/05/2011-12/03/2013 1.54
3,000,000 — — 3,000,000 29/02/2012  01/03/2013-29/02/2016 0.84
Subtotal g 25,300,000 — — 25,300,000
Total s 33,000,000 - - 33,000,000
Notes: fiEE -
(1) Number of shares in the Company over which options granted under (1) IREERETEREmME FITEZBR

the Share Option Schemes is exercisable.

(2)  Mr. Feng Yongming resigned as a Director with effect from 1 January
2013.

Particulars of the Share Option Schemes are set out in note 34 to
the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, the chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to
securities transactions by Directors, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:
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Approximate

Number of percentage

4] of interests

Name of Directors underlying in the issued

and the chief executive Capacity Shares Shares share capital

EEREE EBITIRA P

THRAEER g4 igv) HERYGD ERBYEIL

(Note 1)
(ME1)

Mr. Xiao Yan Beneficial owner 2,273,334 1,500,000 0.12%
HERE BHEERA

Mr. Li Tao Beneficial owner — 1,500,000 0.05%
FESAE ERERA

Mr. Xu Lei Beneficial owner — 800,000 0.03%
RERE Ema A

Mr. Leung Wo Ping Beneficial owner — 800,000 0.03%
RIS BEmEEA

Mr. Dong Shi Beneficial owner — 800,000 0.03%
E b BEmEAA

Mr. Hu Dingdong Beneficial owner — 800,000 0.03%
AR BHEBA

Mr. Feng Yongming (Note 2) Beneficial owner — 1,500,000 0.05%
IEoKERSE A (BFE2) BEERA

Notes: F5E

(1) Underlying shares represent share options granted to the Directors and the (1)
chief executive of the Company pursuant to the share option scheme of the
Company and details of which are set out in the “Employee Share Option

Scheme” section.

2) Mr. Feng Yongming resigned as a Director with effect from 1 January 2013. 2)

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the six months ended 31
December 2012 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors and chief executives of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or its associated corporation.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

The register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO recorded that, as at 31 December 2012, the following persons
(not being a Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company) had an interest or short position in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures which fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who
was expected, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meeting of the Company or any other members
of the Group or held any option in respect of such capital and recorded
in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares
of the Company

Number or
attributable
number of shares

FERRRAQT 2R 0 KRAE
R EERER

RATRBEZES KRB RAEI[CKEFEZE
sSofffstsE R-ZTE——F+-_A=+—H"
TAT(WHFARRZES - TETHABRE
ERRER) IR - HERGD HEREFEPHEBIRE
BHERAEGRPIEXNVEHE2 REIDH 2 EX
ARMARNEFBE s ERRER  (FERFESEE
Bk HEEE M A RFNEEMAIER THRER
NAISAEEEAEMKE AR ZRRERE
S 2 2 EA SRR AN TEE 10% sk A E 2 i
SR BEPREZERA 2 EMBERE - RIZEAR
AREESRAEKOIEI6HATHFESTR
MFracsE 2z Ezmsk e B -

RERBRGREER GG ZRE

Approximate

or underlying Type of percentage
Name of shareholder shares held interests of interests
BEZRH®
HHERAEE RN
RR & L EE =R ERald
Choi Chung Lam (Note) 623,542,451 (L) Interest in controlled 20.06%
B AEM () corporation
YA E R
Team Effort Investments Limited 623,542,451 (L) Beneficial owner 20.06%

(Note) (Pff7E)

L: Long Position
L:RE

Note:
Mr. Choi Chung Lam (“Mr. Choi”) is the legal and beneficial owner of the entire
issued share capital of Team Effort Investments Limited. Hence, Mr. Choi is

deemed to be interested in 623,542,451 Shares through the shareholding interest
of Team Effort Investments Limited in the Company.
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Save as disclosed above, the Directors or the chief executive of the
Company were not aware that there was any person (not being a
Director or chief executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed
to have, interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or who was expected, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meeting of the Company or any other
members of the Group or held any option in respect of such capital and
recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

B EXFIEBEEN  AARESEHEBITHA
B TAEEEMALT (WIERARRESHEE
TBAB)RARRZIMD - HERIRGD R E#EFE
PR AR REABIRES KB KRGIZEXV
HE2 REIDEZAEAMA RN BN R 2 s
REE  NEHREEEKEEEENEER
BRI ERR RS A S B E A At
RERRZBREAS HIRE 2 TMERIRAE
B10% A Bz e - A REERAZ
BB E © RIRAN R BIRIEE 5 KB E &)
ER0IEATIFBE MR SN ER

TEFEFREER

Percentage of the Group’s

HREEESL
Revenue Purchases
Wz R
The largest customer BAREP 13%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFAE 50%
The largest supplier BAHIER 16%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR EEEET 57%

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which to the best knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group'’s five largest customers and suppliers respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company Bye-
Laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the six months ended 31 December 2012, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required under the
GEM Listing Rules.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or any of their associates (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) had an interest in a business, which competes or may
compete with the business of the Group, or has any other conflict of
interests with the Group.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial periods is set out on pages 155 to 156.

On behalf of the Board

Xiao Yan
Executive Director

Hong Kong
25 March 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BN E

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

wowm o o| s omoF B A R A A
10/F., Allied Kajima Building,

138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Heng
Xin China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to 154,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2012, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the six months
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2012, and
of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the six months then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Cheng & Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Tong Yat Hung
Practising Certificate number PO1055

Hong Kong, 25 March 2013

=z
=

ARBMAR R BBRRDRIBE BN
BEENEEMAFIHRE EEER_-F
——F+ZA=+—HZEBHKAKR BEEE
BEZBLEREAZEMNERERE YOk
REBRAGD 2 WEREEE RS -

BRSHAERAAERAF
HE BT D

5 Bt
HEEEHETTPO1055

EE —E—=F=A=-+AH

2012 SEEFEER BN BIIZERER AT



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEBREREMEEERAR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

BE-Z——F+-A=+—RHI~EA

1.7.2012 1.7.2011
to to
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E——F
+tA—HZ —T——F
—EB-—F +tHA—HZE
+=A —E—CF
Er=1E ~NA=+H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BaE THET FAT
Revenue = 6 300,332 612,460
Cost of sales SHERA (264,566) (354,630)
Gross profit EX 35,766 257,830
Other income Halg A 8 11,723 62,049
Gain on disposal of financial HERAFERABRZ
assets at fair value through SREE WS
profit or loss 8 390 —
Written back on provision I LT B 58 5 [ 3
for trade receivables 49,294 —
Selling and marketing expenses  $HE MKTIGHER X (8,560) (7,502)
Other operating expenses Hipg 2 & A (74,215) (131,199)
Finance costs BERA 9 (4,470) (14,201)
Profit before taxation BRBL AT F 9,928 166,977
Taxation g 10 (8,766) (14,073)
Profit for the period/year EATEFA
attributable to owners PEALER, 5 sE Rl
of the Company 11 152,904
Other comprehensive Hitt2mEWA
income
ltems that may be HEgnEmaEsEs
reclassified subsequently ZIER
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on BEBINEG BN ERE
translating foreign operations 21,631
Total comprehensive AATEEA
income EiLEFR
for the period/year EHEBABE
attributable to the owners
of the Company 174,535
EARNINGS PER SHARE BREF 14
Basic and diluted EARAREE 0.04 cent 6.12 centsfl

2012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e AR R

At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F+-_A=+—8

31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E—_F
+=A —E——fF
=+—H ~A=1+A
Notes HK$°000 HK$’'000
B TET FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BE R 15 265,560 232,352
Goodwill RS 16 753,146 753,146
Intangible assets B EE 17 127,732 123,543
Deposits for acquisition of WHESERBEE RS
non-current assets 18 127,291 97,594
1,273,729 1,206,635
Current assets REEE
Inventories =zE 19 29,211 174,406
Trade receivables FEBR X 20 399,160 447,951
Prepayments, deposits and TENFIE - Bek
other receivables H At fEUGRIR 21 188,884 375,748
Financial assets at fair value BEAVERAEBDR
through profit or loss ZEMEE 22 - 2,610
Restricted bank deposits BEHIERITER 23 8,786 1,731
Cash and cash equivalents e RIRSEEY 24 13,067 149,044
639,108 1,151,490
Assets classified as held for sale DB AFEHE 2 EE 25 581,152 —
1,220,260 1,151,490
Current liabilities REaE
Trade payables TERBRX 26 48,579 50,562
Other payables and accruals E b fETROE K ERT B 36,673 12,833
Receipts in advance TEUER K 27 37,247 34,159
Promissory note =R 28 - 2,000
Obligations under finance leases i &4 & £ 29 286 406
Convertible notes payable FER AT HARR =45 31 - 195,849
Short term loans EHER 23 7,596 —
Tax payable FEBRTHIE 49,977 42,484
180,358 338,293
Liabilities directly associated with B 48 AisEH & 2 B
assets classified as held for sale  HiEiEE & 25 48,048 —
228,406 338,293
Net current assets REBEEZE 991,854 813,197
Total assets less HEERRBES
current liabilities 2,265,583 2,019,832

2012 SEEFER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e AR R

At 31 December 2012 RZZE——F+=-A=+—H
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E—_F
+=A —E-—fF
=t+-H NA=tH
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
5T TFHET FET
Non-current liabilities ERBARG
Receipts in advance TEUBR TR 27 73,632 73,644
Obligations under finance leases REEMLIE T 29 26 105
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBAE 30 2,021 2,021
Notes payable JERN T 32 150,000 —
225,679 75,770
Net assets EEFE 2,039,904 1,944,062
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital & A 33 31,086 28,086
Reserves it 2,008,818 1,915,976
Total equity ESAE 2,039,904 1,944,062

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on RZ-ZE—=F=A-+THAKLEFSHHEREK

25 March 2013. RETIEE o
Xiao Yan Li Tao
HE =
Director Director
EZ EZ
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERBEBER

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 BE-_ZT——F+-A=t+—HI~EA

Attributable to owners of the Company
RARER AL

Exchange Share Convertible
Share Share  Capital fluctuation Other  option notes Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  profits  equity

TERER
BE ROVEE SARE EXRE HURE BRERS i REEN BRER
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKF000 HK$000 HK$000 HKE'000 HK$000
Thr T TAxr  TEr  TEr TAx  TExr TEr AR

At 1 July 2011 RZE——F+F—H 24871 1,107,946 2,325 40861 (79,992) 11215 134,254 444,248 1,685,728
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - - — 152904 152,904
Other comprehensive income Hip2ERA
Exchange difference on REBINES
translating foreign operations ZERES - - - 21,631 - - - - 21,631
Total comprehensive income EAILONE - - - 21,631 - - — 152,904 174535
Conversion of convertible notes A [#BIRE1E 3,192 198,811 - - - - (119,337) - 82,666
Share issue expenses FkHE - 8] - - - - - - &)
Recognition of share-based TR BT H
payments - - — - - 322 — - 322
Share options exercised BT 2 B 23 1,006 - - - 215) - - 814
Transfer to retained profits RERERME
upon expiry of share options BEAREGEH - - - - - (670) - 670 -
3215 199,814 - - — (53 (119337 670 83799
At 30 June 2012 RZE-—#5A=1H 28,086 1,307,760 2325 62492 (79992 10,652 14917 597,822 1,944,062
Profit for the period HRgEH| - - - — — - — 1182 1182
Other comprehensive income Hth2EBA
Exchange differences on BEENER
tranglating foreign operations ZERES — — — 439 — — — — 439
Total comprehensive income EEl N — — — 4329 — — — 1,162 5491
Derecognition of convertiole notes 48 |- iR AR E 15 — - - - = (14917) 14917 —
lssue of new shares TR 3000 87,000 - - - - - — 90,000
Share issue expenses BIRHFES - (319) — - - - - - (319
Recognition of AR REBR
share-based payments — — — - — 670 - — 670
3,000 86,681 - — — 670  (14917) 14917 9,035
At 31 December 2012 RZE-ZF
+-A=1+-H 31,086 1,394,441 2325 66821 (79,992 11,322 — 613,901 2,039,904

2012 SEEFEER BN BIIZERER AT




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MERTRER

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 BE-_Z——F+=-A=t+—HIEAA
1.7.2012 1.7.2011
to to
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E—_—F
tA—RE —F—F
—E-—F +A—HBZ
+=A —E-—fF
=+—8 NA=+8
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FiBT
Cash flows from operating activities && EETERESTE
Profit before taxation PR RT3 9,928 166,977
Adjustments for: BLATEIBEL AR
Allowance and written back for doubtful U BR 7k~ S8R B 5 12 [0l B H 58
debts on trade receivables, net (49,294) 35,663
Allowance for inventories GFERE — 1,658
Depreciation ree 8,085 13,227
Gain on disposal of financial assets HERA T ERAERE
at fair value through profit or loss 2B E W (390) —
Gain on disposal of intangible assets HEREEE 2 W - (56,744)
Impairment loss on intangible assets mILEERERE = 5,070
Impairment loss on prepayments, TERNFIE - e Rk
deposits and other receivables H s IB R EESE 7,941
Interest expenses B 14,201
Interest income LB U A (4,449
Loss on fair value changes of EATER AER
financial assets at fair value ZERMBEATFEEYEE
through profit or loss — 5,940
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BELREZEE
plant and equipment 3,549 858
Net loss on remeasurement of AEFEDBEAFIELEZ
assets classified as held for sale BEMEEZBIBFR 28,230 —
Share-based payment expenses LARRAD S - 5R3R 670 322
Operating cash flows before BEEASEI o KEHERE
movements in working capital 5,152 190,664
Increase in inventories FEEM (27,780) (168,052)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables  FEURBRZR (350) I8 > (103,166) 96,612
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERFUE -~ e RHALEYEIR
deposits and other receivables D, (g ) 34,072 (118,301)
Decrease in amount due FEUR —FEIREE R B SR IER A
from a related company - 50,991
Increase in restricted bank deposits BR B RITIFFIE (7,055) (1,723
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FERT BRSSO ) 45,833 (76,055)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables HAbFE HRIB R IEFTE R
and accruals #h,7 Cri ) 24,072 (9,861)
Increase in receipts in advance TEU AR FRIE N 3,092 100,437
Cash (used in)/generated from K (frA) EEzRE
operations (25,780) 64,712
Interest paid EATHLE (320) (190)
Tax paid EAHIE (22,496) (14,035)
Net cash (used in)/from meEsEE (FrA)/
operating activities BB e FHE (48,596) 50,487

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2012




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 BE-_Z——F+=-A=t+—HIEAA
1.7.2012 1.7.2011
to to
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E—_—F
+tH—RAZE —E——fF
—E-—F +A—HBZ
+=A —E-—fF
=+—8 NA=+8
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FiBT
Cash flows from investing activities E&EEERESTE
Deposits for investments WE &S (12,272) —
Deposits for acquisition of WEEEEEZIES
intangible assets (3,593) (75,580)
Deposits for acquisition of property, WHEMZE ~ BB R&E IS
plant and equipment (29,348) (21,560)
Interest received BUF B 96 695
Purchases of intangible assets BERFEE (4,212) (81,693)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment B E¥% - BiE K& & (42,649) (98,771)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets &R AFEF ABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss TREEZFTSHRIA 3,000 —
Proceeds from disposal of HEmI A E Y e A
intangible assets 89,306
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE - BE R&
property, plant and equipment 2 FT1S5RIE = 11,593
Net cash used in investing activities % &;EEFT AR S S (88,978) (176,010)
Cash flow from financing activities mﬂﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁmbg
New bank and other loan raised ESRITREMER 11,596 —
Loan from a shareholder —% R 2 B = 10,000
Repayment of bank and other loan BEBITREMER (4,000) (12,217)
Repayment of convertible notes EEMRRER (100,000) —
Repayment of obligations BEERERNEMT
under finance leases (199) (875)
Repayment of loan from a shareholder ~ EE—RREZER (10,000)
Repayment of promissory note EEAHLERE (2,000) (6,000)
Proceeds from issue of shares A& 21T RIS 5RIR 90,000 814
Proceeds from issue of 6% coupon bonds  #£776% Z & EE Y S EE 50,000 —
Share issue expenses BITIRM B (319) )
Net cash from/(used in) BEETHME (FrH)BEEE
financing activities 45,078 (17,781)
Net decrease in cash RERRSEEYRDFE
and cash equivalents (92,496) (143,304)
Cash and cash equivalents R FAZ2RERASZEEY
at beginning of the period/year 149,044 288,477
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [E & & &)~ 874 4,399 3,871
Cash and cash equivalents RE EFRZEERESZEY
at end of the period/year 60,947 149,044
Analysis of the balances of cash RERBLEEYZERDWN
and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and in hand RITFRER S 149,044
o1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of the annual
report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities and other details of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 45.

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END
DATE

On 12 November 2012, the Company announced that the financial
year end date of the Company was changed from 30 June to 31
December (the “Change”). The Change is to coincide the financial
year end date of the Company with the financial year end date of
its subsidiaries which were incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China, the financial results of which are consolidated in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements and their financial
statements are statutorily required to be closed with the financial
year end date of 31 December. The Change has resulted in the
consolidated financial statements for the period from 1 July 2012
to 31 December 2012 covering a period of 6 months while the
comparative amounts for the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity, consolidated statement of cash flows and
related notes for the period from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012
covering a period of 12 months, and therefore they may not be
comparable.

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current period, the Group has applied the following new and

revised standards, amendments and interpretations (“new and

revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax — Recovery of

Underlying Assets

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current
period has had no material effect on the amounts reported in
these consolidated financial statements and/or disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements, except as described
below:

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments introduce new terminology for the statement of
comprehensive income. Under the amendments, the “statement
of comprehensive income” is renamed as the “statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income”. The amendments
also require additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: (a) items
that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and
(b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis — the amendments do not change the option to present
items of other comprehensive income either before tax or net
of tax. The amendments have been applied retrospectively, and
hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive income
has been modified to reflect the changes. Other than the above
mentioned presentation changes, the application of the HKAS 1
(Amendments) does not result in any impact on profit or loss, other
comprehensive income and total comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 BE-_Z——F+=-A=t+—HIEAA

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. MFT R KIS H B
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING WEXER ([ BB BEHRE

STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued) 2R 1))
The Group has not early applied the following new and revised REBEW AR PRA TSI ERMAERER
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective. AR RS R BB S 2R o
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BRVBWELER Z—TTNEFE
2009-2011 cycle' CHEN, T ——F A
BB RS
R FER#E'
HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Government Loan' EEVBHEEL  BUTER
EREACCHIEN)
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Offsetting Financial ERYFWELER] KT — KSR
Assets and Financial Liabilities' ENATACCHIF:) BELRSHARE
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments® EEVBHEER SmIA°
el
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 BBV WEER BB EEwEER
(Amendments) and Transition Disclosures® FIOREES 2 958 2 98
B 7% 5 4E ) £ E R
ENEACCHIEN) EEEREES
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, BBV WEELER  REePBmE
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Joint Arrangements and F105% - BB BELHR
Disclosure of Interests in Other B 7% s a5 42 Bl HithEEg
Entities — Transition Guidance' F1HERES MR IREE —
B 7% w5 42 Bl EEEES|
E125% BT
Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment Entities® BBV mEER REER®
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 E£105% - B
(as revised in 2011) B 7% s a5 42 )
F12HRED
GETAERIZE 27 5%
—E——fF
FLAERT) 2A85T
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements' BBV REEDL  RAEMBHREK
F 1058
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements' BBV HREEL SETH
FE115%
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other BBV WEER HEMEREoER
Entities' E125% BE
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement' EEVBHEEL] AFEAE
F135%
HKAS 32 (Amendments) Presentation — Offsetting Financial BT 27| — EigSrh
Assets and Financial Liabilities® FRF(EFTA) BERSBRARE®

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continueq)

HKAS 19 (as revised Employee Benefits'
in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised Separate Financial Statements'
in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised Investments in Associates and Joint
in 2011) Ventures'

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production

Phase of a Surface Mine'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised HKFRSs, certain of which may be
relevant to the Group’s operations and may give rise to changes in
accounting policies, changes in disclosures and remeasurement of
certain items in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosure required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, which
are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for assets.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including special purpose
entities) controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposal of during
the period/year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those
used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i) derecognises
the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
at their carrying amounts at the date when control is lost, (i)
derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including
any components of other comprehensive income attributable
to them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest, with any resulting difference being recognised as a gain
or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group. When assets
of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values
and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred directly to retained profits as specified by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

— deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

— liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment at the acquisition date; and

— assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in another HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as
appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss. Amounts arising from interest's the acquriee prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), and additional assets
or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

(continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there
is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets
of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately other
than from business combinations are recognised at cost. After
initial recognition, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less any identified impairment loss. Intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised on a straight-line basis over its
useful lives, and carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are identified
and recognised separately from goodwill where they satisfy
the definition of an intangible asset and their fair values can be
measured reliably. The cost of such intangible assets is their fair
value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

E-FE——F+—-A=+—HItXEA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EE=:HHE #)

(continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
(or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised
if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

— the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

— the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

—  the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

— how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

— the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the intangible asset; and

— the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Research and development expenditure (continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets acquired separately.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress
as described below are stated in the statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than construction in progress less their residual values over
their useful lives, using the straight-line method at the following
rates per annum:

Computer equipment 19 — 33% per annum
Furniture and fixtures 19 — 20% per annum
Office equipment 18 — 32% per annum
Leasehold improvements over the remaining lease term
Motor vehicles 19 — 20% per annum
Plant and machineries 10 — 23% per annum
Transmission and other 4 — 30% per annum

network equipment
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct
labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs
of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and
distribution.

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwiill (continueq)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unite) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

E-FE——F+—-A=+—HItXEA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EE=HHE 2

(continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s policy on borrowing costs (see the
accounting policy below).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

HY

NS ERREZ @A R K [0 #5882 %
MAZBOER - B RARERY -
PR DBAKLEREL -

REBEREBEA

HREBNRA ZEER L HEOK 2
FENSERARASEEE @ SfHBEIE
- AR&ERSZHRE - HEAREZ
BTN EE M BARRR T IR SR EMR
MR -

BAONFIRL A BRIRERMEER
TR NEREEHRBLZEESEX -
BERXEZENERRTER - RIEFEE
BSRAEREE  HERBEATARAK
SEZEERABRENME(F2HTX
SEIBE) -

RERNNFTNENF AR REHERA
Fx - A = —ERFGIEEET R
EREEEEES BN 2B EE R
BRON

THT A

TREENRERAGBEINEEERKAT
HEAMEX 2 —HHER

2012 SEER BHNFPRIERERA A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into one of the two categories,
including financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)
and loans and receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at

FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset

is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may

be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets
or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management or
investment strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

0=

—E——F4+-A=+—HINEA

BEESTTBER @)

LET A
ERMEE(E)
BR-FETIABEZEMEE

HERMEERFHEEBERIEERRATE
stARS - MSREBERE/RAFER

Az e
THBERTEHEERBARKERE :

— FRBZEREEZEZERANETA
HERIHE + X

— RUPHEREBRAEEEERE 2T
BplemTAES 2 —#H A
HERELAEERENEE 2R
%

— BRUTAETAGEENRER EREH
TARRIN -

HWEMEELIFFERE - AIARERIAT
BERENFERRIEE SRR ATENAR

m -

—  ZIEEHERIARRD TR
ZETEHERTE I AR X

— REoREERdoREEIDH
BEIMmEEaZ —#H MR
BAKENEZRBREEIIRER
B - RIABEZEEMEREEE
ARFHERBERET XEBBED
Mz BRERILER R AR
B4

— HEBREE BAZERATET
B2 Bz —8th  mELBGFE
AIEIRAHARBREERESESH(E
EHBE)BEER/RAFEFAR

=

/|

o

B

2012 SEER BHNFPRIERERA A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Loans and receivables (including trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables, restricted bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or
loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been
affected.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

— breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period, as well as observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an equity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Convertible notes with conversion option

Convertible notes issued by the Group that contain both the liability
and conversion option components are classified separately into
respective items on initial recognition. Conversion option that will
be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the gross proceeds
of the issue of the convertible notes and the fair value assigned
to the liability component, representing the conversion option for
the holder to convert the notes into equity, is included in equity
(convertible notes reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
notes is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The equity component, representing the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in convertible notes reserve until the embedded option is
exercised (in which case the balance stated in convertible notes
reserve will be transferred to share premium). Where the option
remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance stated in
convertible notes reserve will be transferred to the retained profits.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the option.

0=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

—E——F4+-A=+—HINEA

BEESTTBER @)

EHITA#E)
TREERERTA(E)
RiEBRES TR R EE

REEBITZAIBMEREEFEAERER
R - RIS HERE S B DB RSN
BEE - SUABEHRSEERE—HLH
BEXBARRBEEHRB ZEETATR
BB DRGSR TA -

R HERE - BERRD 2 2 FEREE
PREBIER 2 RITM SN RETE - %17
ABREREZ S FURA R AR T B EE
MZAFEMERZEZR(RRFFEA
KRRk Atk 2 BIRE) I Atk (7]
BRI E) A

RERERE  IREERAESBHAE
BRI R IR B A AR SRR o Rz BB D (R
KAKABEFNBRARAREBR
EER) BRERXAERERFHE BEE
BRANERERETESLE(ERERT
AR R B R BRSE R E RO 5
B) - HERENDH B W ARETE - 7]
BRFREGBERERERE DN - 83
B R EIR s B RS T e MR T R
E &

2012 SEER BHNFPRIERERA A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Convertible notes with conversion option (continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to
the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to
the equity component are charged directly to equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible notes using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade payables, other payables
and accruals, promissory note, obligations under finance leases,
convertible notes payable, short term loans and notes payable)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset,
the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing
for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial
asset between the part it continues to recognise, and the part
it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of
those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised
and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income is reognised in
profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part
that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

0=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

—E——F4+-A=+—HINEA

BEESTTHER @)

THITA#E
RIETRRR

AEBENREERIHRSRE SRR

EmRER S —EE E%’frﬂéé&uié
EE PR REAE K ER 0 e S M B 05 & 4%
EREMEE - 1Hﬂ’$%@ﬂ%ﬁ$§%§év‘ﬁﬁﬁ%
B AT A R AR B 1 B e BN T A A 2
ROHEREE  AASKESBERESE
S ANEREE - WHERERAE -
HAKRERECERSRHEEMAREX
BRI R S EREN - RIS SR B R A B TR X
BEREE  NEERDWASHREAZE
HEARMER -

REIEREHERMEER - BERAE
HE B MEEREREREME2EEAF
FER ST Rt 2 Rt R

Bz 25 - BRBEPRER
FREm A ILERIN  RRILEREREE

B AEEEReREE CAEREEE
HAER 2 2 in R N BiER 2 8m2 M
RRZMENER A2 BE A HEER
DB - TR E D 2 BRE(E X
HBOERREREERNEMEEBARER
AR EMRFHREREBIRZ BAMEZ
Z8 0 IREETHER - ERNEMEEK
AMER 2 Rt et s BiE - MR E R
ZEMn R BRER 2B 2SN EE
A mEREL DB

2012 SEF$R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition
is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the
non-current asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate
sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to
the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria described
above are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-
controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold
and services provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts, returns and sales related taxes.

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with time when goods are
delivered to customers and title has passed.

Service income is recognised in the period when services are
rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences arising on monetary item that forms part of the entity’s
net investment in a foreign operation, in which case, such exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the
monetary item. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the end of the reporting period, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (the exchange fluctuation
reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which the foreign operation is disposal of.

In relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences is re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and is not recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to retirement benefit plans and government-managed
retirement benefits schemes are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

0=

—E——F4+-A=+—HINEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees and directors of the
Group

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised
as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in a share
option reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability that the options
will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged / credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share option reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 BE-_Z——F+=-A=t+—HIEAA
& s~
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EZEEFBER @
(continued)
Related parties BEEA L
A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to BT AL » AIFZA LTSGR A T 2T
the Group if that person: RERK S BAREEHRE
—  has control or joint control over the Group; — EHs RS AEE
—  has significant influence over the Group; or — HASEFEEATE ok
— is a member of the key management personnel of the Group — RASEIAXEKERARIEEE
or the Group’s parent. BAE °
An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions W& NI ERIEYS - BIEREAEES
applies: A
—  The entity and the Group are members of the same group — ZEREAEEBER-—SEZKE
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow 28 (BIEEAF - WBARKRZR

subsidiary is related to the others). B AR EEEE) -

—  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity — —HEBRSEBIZBERAN
(or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of EEME (B —EEAKEATZ
which the other entity is a member). SEXERARIZEE QRIS AEED

x) o
—  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. — WEEBHAER—F=ZFZ&8%01
% o

—  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other — —HEBRE-FEBRBZAED

entity is an associate of the third entity. X mME—EBRRA—F=7E8
d /NG

—  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit — ERARAEESHEAEEBERES

of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the ERBnE Bk 2 B 2 2 T

Group. FTE) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

4.

(continued)

Related parties (continued)

— The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified as above.

— A person, who has control or joint control over the Group,
has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE_T——F+-A=+—HI~EA
5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 5. &5t fHBEMEZEERE
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors of the Company are required
to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of
the value-in-use of the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated. The value-in-use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. At 31 December
2012, the carrying amount of goodwill arising is HK$753,146,000
(80 June 2012: HK$753,146,000). Details of the recoverable
amount calculation are disclosed in note 16.

RIERMFE 4 Tl 2 NEE & 7T BORE -
RARERARLNE SR EAM KRB R
ZEBENABEREEFL A RRE -
At KA RR IR BB ERR M EMEK
RAER AREL - BERAERAIBEERZ
EfEEHTR -

At RARERREHERS - AT REH
RRZ ERBR LN HE PR TEE
Mz B EZRIR - BREBRKR R TR
SEREXRRER - SIRAR T —WBEE
HEERRBZRABFLEARE -

185 B Bl {E

TRTEERLRE AN BEmEmoR
ErReEAB T ERBEEL G -
HEFEREAR  AEEEAYESRRS
EEBTMEEZARBSREEL G
it WiEE —ERARTERBEZEENR
Ko MERAKRRESRELNTES - 8
AgEERENRESE - RZT—=F
TZA=+—R " FEAZBEREEAR
753,146,000 T (— T ——F A=+
H : 753,146,000/ 70 ) » sF & ATk @ &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other
than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at each reporting date. Indefinite life
intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and at other
times when such indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. When value-in-use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss for trade
receivables, the Group takes into consideration the estimation of
future cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount
of trade receivables is HK$399,160,000 (30 June 2012: carrying
amount of HK$477,951,000, net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$49,294,000).

Estimated impairment of intangible assets

Determining whether intangible assets (i.e. acquired technology
and development costs) are impaired requires an estimation of
the value in use of the trademarks. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the acquired technology and development costs and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2012, the carrying
amount of the Group’s intagible assets is HK$127,291,000 (30
June 2012: H$123,543,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Allowance for inventories

Management exercises its estimates in making allowance for
inventories. Management reviews the inventory listing at the end
of each reporting period, and makes allowance for obsolete and
slow-moving inventory items identified that no longer suitable
for use in operation. As at 31 December 2012, the carrying
amount of inventories is HK$29,211,000 net of allowance
for inventories of HK$2,275,000 (30 June 2012: carrying
amount of HK$174,406,000, net of allowance for inventories of
HK$2,275,000).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in Hong Kong and
the People’s Republic of China. Significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of the provision for income taxes. There
are certain transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE-T——F+-_A=+—HI~EA
6. REVENUE 6. Y
Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable by WaEAEESEHERIREFHEER
the Group from the sale of goods and services rendered to outside om 2 52 AR 75 P MRCER K2 B 2 3 B (A8 3T
customers, net of discounts, returns and sales related taxes, for WA REREEMRBARIER) - 2T
each period and is analysed as follows: W
1.7.2012 to 1.7.2011 to
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—F—=F —T——%
tA—BZE tH—HZE
—E——F —E——F
t=A=+—8” ANA=1H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
Digital cable television business BB TERER 65,796 153,532
Wireless digital television ERSTERIEERS
value-added services 45,796 48,074
Encrypted integrated circuits pili-arY=y 2,891 101,549
Wireless digital audio MG TERECA
integrated circuits 37,130 183,506
Wireless digital terrestrial HERRETER
television network MR RS K
equipment integration 148,719 125,799
300,332 612,460
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. DEBEF
The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the FELERRECHRTERIATES - T
Executive Directors. The Executive Directors review the Group’s EEEHAEE 2R E - UFHERE
internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate EAieER - ERERBATESEN
resources. Management has determined the operating segments WMEBELENES ©
based on the reports reviewed by the Executive Directors.
The Executive Directors consider the performance of the Group WOTEEREMRRB 2 EEZEERAEE
from the perspective of the nature of products and services. The ZFRB o FELERFER D IRV AR AR
chief operating decision-maker assesses the performance of the Az Ehm A, (E518) (B8R 8 FrolE —
operating segments based on a measure of segment profit/(loss) B2t FHMEEE NI R -

without allocation of finance costs which is consistent with that in

the accounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 #

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The segment information for the six months ended and as at
31 December 2012 is as follows:

E-Z——F+-A=+—RIEA

7 /'\:‘1_ >5§

&R )
a§:= —f+—A=+—BIAEA
T HWERMT :

Wireless
digital
Digital  television
cable value-
television added
business services
BT HF %ﬁ
BRER  BERE
HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue Wz _
Segment revenue from REIREFE
external customers 2 65,796 45,796
Segment results DEPEE 39,892 (28,944)
Unallocated income ROBUA
Unallocated expenses ADERX
Finance costs A& PR
Profit before taxation BRBLATR R
Taxation Hi1E
Profit for the period BB
Assets E
Segment assets DEEE 1,089,185 134,226
Unallocated assets RAOEEE
Assets held for sale FELECEE
Consolidated total assets REBEE
Liabilities 8&
Segment liabilities HHEE (94,487)  (103,755)
Unallocated liabilities AofaE
Liabilities directly associated BN EARIELE 2
with assets classified EEERBBZ A
as held for sale
Consolidated total liabilities 452 &(E
Other information HipgH
Capital expenditure ERRE
Unallocated capital expenditure %) Bt & 785 5%
Total capital expenditure ENCTERT
Depreciation nE
Unallocated depreciation AOBHTE
Total depreciation TEwE
Allowance for doubtful debts ~ EMEEF
on trade receivables, net RERRETE
Allowance for inventories FEEE
Impairment loss EBVAE
on intangible assets HEEE
Impairment loss on BAFIE - Zek
prepayments, deposits : thﬁJE J‘WW\IE
and other receivables i
Net loss on remeasurement Ié%ﬁ HENEA
of assets classified #’H’Eﬁ’%z AE_
as held for sale FEE 7 BEFE
Written back on provision FEUBR R A [0 %
for trade receivables

Wireless
digital
terrestrial
television
network
equipment
mtegratlon

Wireless
digital
audio
integrated
circuits

Encrypted
integrated
circuits

i \#i%l—?—
B8

MESH
HK$’000
TET

Acr
HK$'000
TR

2,801
36,998

37,130
(3,185)

148,719
12,702

300,332

57,463
206
(43,271)
(4,470)

9,928
(8,766)

1,162

443,295 163,128 1,829,834

83,003
581,152
2,493,989

(17,271) (2,155) (217,668)

(188,369)

(48,048)
(454,085)

50,048
52

50,100

7,300
785

8,085




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 BE-_Z——F+=-A=t+—HIEAA
. mvi | P=-AIN -
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq) 7. DEER #)
The segment information for the year ended and as at 30 June B —FARNA=THLEFEZHE
2012 is as follows: BRI
Wireless
Wireless digital
digital Wireless terrestrial
Digital television digital television
cable value- Encrypted audio network
television added integrated integrated  equipment
business services circuits circuits integrig%\ Total
iR L EREy
ﬁ%?%(% HTES mR¥y  EReE ‘
BER S RERE  NELRE BETHE RS s
FikG00g HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
Revenue Wz
Segment revenue from REIREP
external customers oyl € 153,532 48,074 101,549 183,506 125,799 612,460
Segment results DEEE 98,663 38,884 34,277 37,366 4,024 213,214
Unallocated income FAON 8,122
Unallocated expenses ROFEFE (40,158)
Finance costs BMEKR (14,201)
Profit before taxation B?ﬁ AR 166,977
Taxation TIE (14,079)
Profit for the year ﬂiwlﬁ*l 152,904
Assets gE
Segment assets ot “BﬁF 670,569 103,546 466,270 488,252 585,133 2,313,770
Unallocated assets 5?% &z 44,355
Assets held for sale e ’Eﬁ ZEE —
Consolidated total assets REBEE 2,358,125
Liabilities =L
Segment liabilities HHEE 11,751 77,427 13,520 51,009 16,966 170,673
Unallocated liabilities ADERE 243,390
Liabilities directly associated BN ARIELHEZ
with assets classified EEEERH
as held for sale Z8fE -
Consolidated total liabilties ~ 4FA B EE 414,083
Other information HER
Capital expenditure BARMY 106,488 45 36,640 23,311 45,981 212,465
Unallocated capital expenditure & 2 Bt & A& 5 52 1,216
Total capital expenditure ERBRE 213,681
Depreciation e 8,664 22 194 2,812 243 11,935
Unallocated depreciation AP E 1,292
Total depreciation FEBE 13,227
Allowance for doubtful debts ~ FEWZERFR
on trade receivables, net RERRETE — — 29,639 6,024 — 35,663
Allowance for inventories FERE — — — 1,658 — 1,658
Impairment loss on EFEERERBE
intangible assets 1,710 — 2,505 — 855 5,070
Impairment loss on BEFE - me Rk
prepayments, deposits E b FEUGRIBR(E
and other receivables BB — — 7,941 — — 7,941
Net loss on remeasurement ~ EEFEt 955
of assets classified as FIELHEC AR
held for sale NEE ZBIEFE — — — — — —
Written back on provision U B SR B e [ 8
for trade receivables — — — — — —




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE_T——F+-A=+—HI~EA

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. DEER @)
Geographical information IR
The Group’s revenue from external customers and information AEE D RIERP KB EMTHE D EE/
about non-current assets by geographical location of the REINREE 2 W MIEREEEEAFH,
customers and assets respectively are detailed below. FIGAR o

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
RE IR
BEEz W FRBEE

WG PRGCE 1.7.2011 to BRBPAPACE  1.7.2011 to
31.12.2012 30.6.2012 By i PR P 30.6.2012
—E—_—F —E—_—F
tA—H=ZE = tA—HZE —E—F
s =Ll H—AZE
+=A = =Ll — T —F
=+—H =+—H ~NA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FAT TExT FHT

Hong Kong &5 35,128 2,744 56,585
The PRC s 265,204 503,018 1,270,985 1,150,050

300,332 612,460 1,273,729 1,206,635
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding periods individually
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are
revenue from digital cable television business, wireless digital
television value-added services, wireless digital audio integrated
circuits and wireless digital terrestrial television network equipment
integration (30 June 2012: revenue from digital cable television
business, encrypted integrated circuits, wireless digital audio
integrated circuits and wireless digital terrestrial television network
equipment integration) and as follows:

HE

7.

—E——&E+ - f=+—HINEAR

DEBER @)
FEEFZER

RIBEHER - KB ERIEF 2 s F Rt
(EAREE B Y HEIB10%) IR B A 4
BFERER  BEREFEREERS
BREFEHACH O EERKB T ERE
RERBERZ R (ZE—ZF A=+
B REBRBFEREL  WECH
BRETFERCH MBS FERS
MEREERZ W) - FHIFIT

1.7.2012 to 1.7.2011 to
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
=F-—=F —T—F
tA—-HBE tHA—H=Z
—EB——F —E——F
+T=HA=+—H ANA=TH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET TET

Customer A EYSEE
Customer B BFEZ
Customer C PR
Customer D BFT

50,797 100,381
36,837 73,302
39,592 63,792
36,837 73,302

164,063 310,777
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE-_Z——F+-_A=t+—HI~EA
8. OTHER INCOME 8. Hfthg A
1.7.2012 to 1.7.2011 to
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E—C—F =%
tA—HZ +tHA—HB=
—=2—_—F —EF——F
+=B=+-8 NA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Bank interest income ERITRBUA 695
Exchange gain, net b 5 e F 7R -
Gain on disposal of intangible assets H &2 E & 2 W 56,744
Other interest income HAthF S UA 3,754
Sundry income FEEUWA 856
62,049
T g
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. RMEMZA
1.7.2012 to 1.7.2011 to
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E—-F =%
tA—HZ +HA—HB=
—E——F —E—-—F
+T=H=+—H ~NA=T+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Effective interest expenses LTBES CBEEF SR
on straight bonds -
Effective interest expenses HRERCERF SR
on convertible notes (note 31) (fF5ES1) 14,011
Interest element of finance leases ~ BE L2 FIE 54
Interest on bank and other loans 877 K& E {th & 2 Rl & —
Interest on loan from a shareholder —&ZAXEE 2 & 136
14,201
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE-T——F+-_A=+—HI~EA
10. TAXATION 10. $i18
1.7.2012 to 1.7.2011 to
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—T——%F
tH—H=Z
—E——F
~A=1+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FAT
Current tax: BNEATRIA -
— Hong Kong — &BB 315
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — R EMER 23,651
Over provision in prior year: B FEBERE
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — PR EMEH (9,893)
Deferred tax (note 30): IRAERRIA (FIFE30) ¢
— current period/year — AHR,FE —
14,073
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated B BN BA R EHAR 2 (b5t e R A
assessable profit for both periods. HHEA6.5%THE -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at 25% of the estimated FP B 1 3 P45 B A AR (B HA RS 2 1 5T P AR A
assessable profit for both periods. Pursuant to the relevant i AR T R 25% 5T & o IRIEH E MR E
laws and regulations in the PRC, some of the Company’s PRC BRER - ANAFE THBREARER
subsidiaries are entitled to exemption from PRC income tax for % B B EER QL FE BT S AT
the two years commencing from the first profit-making year of BIFTISH - HEZEWB AR REER=F
operation and thereafter, those subsidiaries will be entitled to a BRI Z AR BFT SRR ER -

50% relief from PRC income tax for the following three years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 BE-_Z——F+=-A=t+—HIEAA

10. TAXATION (continued) 10. B8 ()
The tax charge for the period/year can be reconciled to the AHE, FE2RIES KRG B RE
profit per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other R AR ZEFEERAT

comprehensive income as follows:

1.7.2012 to 1.7.2011 to
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—B2—=F —T——%
tA—HZE tH—HZE
—E——F —E——4F
+=A=+-8 ~NA=+A
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FA&T
Profit before taxation R A AR F 9,928 166,977
Tax at applicable tax rate BEARETE 2 HIE 2,482 33,075
Tax effect of expenses not FFIA B M TR A
deductible for tax purpose IR E 4,674 23,345
Tax effect of income not taxable ~ FAFEIE B MIFERRTEUA
for tax purpose LRI 2 (6,831) (12,394)
Tax effect of temporary difference B Z=5E v FiIEF/ZE 2,071 20
Tax effect of tax losses not RERTIEE B HIEZZ
recognised 12,189 2,870

Utilisation of tax losses previously & /LAl R FER 2 FiIEE 1B

not recognised (11)
Effect of tax exemptions granted to BB A R ERFRBHAR

PRC subsidiaries d-% (5,819) (22,939)
Over provision in prior year BEFEBERE — (9,893)
Taxation charge HIEZ 14,073
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

11. PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR

Profit for the period/year has been arrived at after charging:

BE-ZE——F+-A=+—RHIt~EA

1. 81 " FRREA

B F s TSGR T 511 & HR IR

1.7.2012 to
31.12.2012
—E—C—fF
tA—-B=ZE
—E——fF
t=A=+—8H
HK$’000
TERT

Allowance for doubtful debt
on trade receivables, net
Allowance for inventories
Auditor’s remuneration
Consultancy fee
— share-based payment
expenses
Cost of inventories recognised
as expense
Depreciation (note 15)
— owned assets
— assets under finance leases
Exchange loss
Impairment loss on intangible assets
Impairment loss on prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on fair value changes of
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Net loss on remeasurement of
assets classified as held for sale
Research and development costs
Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments — note 12)
— salaries and allowances
— retirement benefits scheme
contributions
— share-based payment
expenses

FEYSRAR R EIFER

FEEE
=R &

BB

— ABRAD XA FRIR

HBERAXZFERA

#rE (HfE15)

—BEBE
—BMEBRYETNEE

B 5 8518

BV EERERRE
BNFOR ~ mE MEM
MR IR R E &R
HEWE - BE KRB ZER

AT A2
Z e MAEATFELHES

AEFTENBEFBIERE
ZEEMELZBIEFH
T 9% R R EEAR AR
BIRA(BRESHE
— MFE12)

— ¥re KRR

— RUREFIFT B

— ABRAD XA RIR

1.7.2011 to
30.6.2012
—T—F
+tH—HB=ZE
—E——F
~NHA=1H
HK$’000
T

264,566

7,892
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

12. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’
EMOLUMENTS

BE-Z——F+-A=+—RHI~EA

12. EERERITHRAEME

BEffRkERtR(ZE—Z=FA=F
B:tR)EEZEZHMEMT

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (30 June
2012: seven) directors are as follows:

Six months ended 31 December 2012 BE—Z——F+=-A=+—HIKEA

Retirement
benefits
Other scheme Total
allowances contributions remuneration
RREF
Hue H A28, B3 4 557
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TET FTET TERT TET
Executive directors: WITES
Feng Yongming 55K A
Li Tao FE
Xiao Yan HE
Non-executive director: HEITES -
Xu Lei =E
Independent BAUIEMITES -
Non-executive directors:
Dong Shi Ea
Hu Dingdong HAER
Leung Wo Ping PHFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE-Z——F+-_A=t+—HI~EA
12. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 12. EERSRITHAEME
EMOLUMENTS (continued) (&)
Year ended 30 June 2012 HE T —FA=1THILFE
Retirement
benefits
Other scheme Total
Fees allowances contributions remuneration
RIREF
wE E ik FHEIHR k=i
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FET
Executive directors: HITEE
Feng Yongming 5K B 1,083 220 4 1,307
Li Tao % 1,300 — 12 1,312
Xiao Yan HE 1,300 — — 1,300
3,683 220 16 3,919
Non-executive director: IEMITES
Xu Lei ®RE 260 — — 260
Independent BN IEITES -
non-executive directors:
Dong Shi V=l 130 — — 130
Hu Dingdong HAE R 130 — — 130
Leung Wo Ping 2 156 — — 156
416 — — 416
4,359 220 16 4,595
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or HE_ZT——F+-_A=+—HIMHE
agreed to waive any remuneration during the six months ended R BRI E S HES R E R E R
31 December 2012 (30 June 2012: Nil). SRR (ZE—=—FA=1+H &) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

12. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

The five highest paid employees during the six months ended 31
December 2012 included three (30 June 2012: three) directors,
details of whose remuneration are set out above. Details of the
remuneration of the remaining two (30 June 2012: two) non-
directors, highest paid employees for the period are as follows:

BE-ZT——F+-A=+—RHIt~EA

12. ESNESRTHRAEMNE
()

HE - ZT——#+-HF=+—HIt/
A IEseFEERE=®(ZZ—=
FRA=ZTH: =R)EF ' BEZHM
HIBEREXZY) - IR 8 TME(Z
T——FXA=Z1+H: MB)IFEERS
iR B 2 HMFIBT -

1.7.2012 to 1.7.2011 to
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E-—F —E——%F
tA—HZ tHA—HZE
—E2——F —EF——F
+=A=+—8 ~A=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000

FE T FAT

Salaries, allowances and e FAREYNZ
benefits in kind

Retirement benefits scheme RINERET B
contributions

2,240

25

2,265

The number of the highest-paid individual senior executives whose
emoluments fell within the following band is as follows:

HFENTFUTBEZERFRRTRAR
N ¢ U

1.7.2012 to 1.7.2011 to
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E——F =%
+tA—HZ +tHA—B=Z%
—E——F —E——4F
+=RA=+—H ~NA=TH

HK$1,000,001-HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 /&7t -2,000,000 78 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

lI\/i\

BBz

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

12

13.

14.

. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

During the six months ended 31 December 2012, no emolument
was paid by the Group to the directors of the Company or any of
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (30 June
2012: Nil).

DIVIDEND

The Board of the Company does not recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the six months ended 31 December 2012
(80 June 2012: Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the consolidated profit for the period attributable to the
owners of the Company of HK$1,162,000 (30 June 2012:
HK$152,904,000) and weighted average number of
2,831,416,000 (30 June 2012: 2,497,376,000) ordinary
shares in issue during the six months ended 31 December
2012.

(b) Diluted

No diluted earnings per share has been presented as
the exercise price of the Company’s outstanding share
options and warrants were higher than the average market
price of the Company’s shares for the six months ended
31 December 2012,
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—E——F4+-—A=+—HINEA

. ESNERITHRAENE
()

HE-Z——F+-A=1+—H1E~E
A AEEBERAARESHANES
HFALTHEAM—CIZABE - (ARSI
EMBRERKEEMBAEE R 2 2E)K
BERHE (2 ——& A=1H : &\E) -

=]

/i

==
p=|

o
7

AARESETERRERE_T——F
+tZA=t+—BLEXRNEAZRBRE (=
T——FXA=1+H: &) -

. BIRER
(a) EX

BREXBFRBEALRESR
A B A FE 45 4R & = 1,162,000
BT(ZE—ZFA=18:
152,904,000 7)) REE=ZT—=
F+-_A=t+—HIABEABET
I 38 AR 0 #E S ¥5 202,831,416,000
(= —=—F~A=Z+8:
2,497,376,000 f%) 5+ & -

(b) #&

HMREE-_ZT——F+-_fF=+—
B 1E 718 B 2N A &) il AR 17158 B AR A
RRBREE 2TEERRAR AR
DzFHEmE  BELEZSGR
BERF| o




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 BE-_ZT——F+-A=t+—HI~EA

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% BEKRRE

Transmission
Furniture Plant and other ~ Construction
Computer and Leasehold Motor Office and network in
equipment fixtures  improvements vehicles equipment machinery equipment progress Total
Eg
AR e BAE BER Rt
Bk Ee4E VES: A& By ] He BeRk HEIR Eh
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
Tk ThL Th Tk ThL T TEn ThL Tk
cosT A
At1 July 2011 R=B--%
tB-H 415 262 429 10,722 2,178 223 100,784 14,790 129,803
Additions e 666 367 1,066 1,233 1,590 - 123,172 3,894 131,988
Disposal e - (8 (399) - - - (13,064) - (13491)
Bchangerealignment B ZFE 5 4 1 114 48 4 2,464 304 2,044
At 30 June 2012 R-B-f
~B=t1R 1,086 605 1,097 12,069 3816 207 213,356 18,988 251,244
Additions Z‘E 259 72 499 - 62 4,468 - 40,528 45,888
Disposal e (51) 1) - - - - - - €]
Witten off 65 - - - - 1) - (3,569) - (3570)
Exchangereaignment 3 FE - - - - - @) (32) (26) 61)
Tansknedtodisposal  BAARAR{ENE
group classfied as LHEER
held for sale 62 ) - (1410 - - - - (1,469
At31December 2012  W-E--%
+ZB=1-H 1,242 649 1,596 10,6859 3817 4,692 209,765 59,490 291,960
ACCUMULATED ZithE
DEPRECIATION
A1 July 2011 RZB-—-F
tE-A 152 137 418 2934 952 167 1,828 - 6,588
Charge for the year EERE 214 104 356 2,267 643 10 9,633 - 13,227
Eliminated on disposals it & - (16) (399) - - - (625) - (1,040)
Exchangerealignment ~ [E{ 8% 2 2 1 1 21 3 7 - 117
At 30 June 2012 R-E--Z&
~B=tA 368 207 376 5212 1,616 180 10913 - 18,892
Charge for the period BRiE 104 50 250 1,147 340 284 5910 - 8,085
Eliminated on disposals it & i @ - - - - - - )
Eiminated onwriten ot~ HisAE i34 - - - - - - ) - )
Exchangerealignment B8 - - - 1 - - () - {4
Transferred to disposal ~ EASEARELE
group classified as ZHEEH
held for sale (1) (1) — (432 — — - — (474)
At31December 2012  W=E-Z%&
TZR=1-H 430 249 626 5928 1,956 464 16,747 - 26,400
CARRYING AMOUNT FAE
At31December2012  R-E-=f
+ZB=1-H 812 400 970 4731 1,921 4228 193,008 59,490 265,560
At 30 June 2012 R=EB-2%
~EZTH 718 378 721 6,857 2,200 47 202,443 18,988 232,352
The carrying amount of the Group’s assets held under finance RZZE——F+-RA=+—H 5T A”RE
leases included in the total amount of motor vehicles at 31 BB ASERBEREBOBTECEEZ
December 2012 amounted to HK$546,000 (30 June 2012: BRTEI{E /5 546,0008 0 (ZE — =56 /X A
HK$739,000). =-+H8 : 739,000/87T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE-T——F+-_A=+—HI~EA
16. GOODWILL 16. B2
HK$’000
FAT
CARRYING VALUES BRMENME
At 1 July 2011, 30 June 2012 RZFE——F+tH—R8 —ZT—=F
and 31 December 2012 NA=t+AR-—ZE——H+-_A=+—H 753,146
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash generating units as HESMERNEEIRECEESE TN ¢
follows:
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E——F —E——4F
+=B=+—H ~NA=1+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Wireless digital terrestrial ME BRI T BRAE
television network equipment REERNREMNZE
integration and information HigZE® (Fisa)
safety technology business
(note a) 443,763 443,763
Digital cable television business BRETERER (HitEb)
(note b) 309,383 309,383
753,146 753,146
Notes: Fi3E
(@  The core technology used in wireless digital terrestrial television (@ HEESETERAESHEEXNREA
network equipment integration and information safety technology ZERMEBRAZZOBITBERINE
business is under the technology umbrella group of the encrypted RIS N 2 Bl A o
integrated circuits business.
()  The design technology of the wireless digital audio integrated circuits (b)) ESHFTERACHEB2RFRMEE
business has grown and diversified to application in the digital cable BRZ TERREEBFTSEEBIE
television business and expected to benefit from the synergy of the R WTEHEZERE HMIEER 2 %

combination of both businesses. R ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE

16. GOODWILL (continued) 16. BE (2

—E——F4+-A=+—HINEA

The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit in the wireless
digital terrestrial television network equipment integration has
been determined based on value-in-use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by senior
management covering a five-year period. The discount rate applied
to cash flow projections is 15% (30 June 2012: 22%).

The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit in the digital
cable television business has been determined based on value-
in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by senior management covering a fourteen-year
period. The discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 17%
(80 June 2012: 18%).

The Group management’s determined budgeted growth rate
and gross profit margin based on past performance and market
expectation.

Since the recoverable amounts of the cash generating units are
higher than their carrying amounts, the directors of the Company
consider that the carrying amount of goodwill at the end of the
reporting period is not impaired.

HWEEGETERMEIERR I HSE
A8 zAllEl B AFEREETE
% BESAEREIE MHEBEEFE
ZE&REWAMETE - AHAF - AR
BeREBAZHRAER15%(ZT—=
FRA=1AH :22%) °

R TEREB  RSEEE T2 AIK
BleRE I AERABENEE  BRESRE
BEEZHRBEFEZRSREEA
MEE  BH+TIHFE BRESRERE
BB ERE17%(CE——F A=+
H:18%) °

A EERE BEEREMERL TR
BAERARTSERER -

BHRREELE T A ESESNER
HE  ARAEERANBRERARFEZ
FREEIRRE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE-Z——F+-_A=t+—HI~EA
17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B &=
Technology Development
fee costs Total
HiiTE A BB R AR st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET
COST RN
At 1 July 2011 R-—E—F+tH—H 79,453 6,381 85,834
Additions RE 81,693 — 81,693
Disposals B (32,562) — (32,562)
Exchange realignment PE 5 FEE 1,766 124 1,890
At 30 June 2012 R-ZT——FxA=+H 130,350 6,505 136,855
Additions NE 4,212 — 4,212
Disposals HeE — — —
Exchange realignment R (24) 1) (25)
At 31 December 2012 R-ZT——HF+-A=+—H 134,538 6,504 141,042
ACCUMULATED REHRE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 July 2011 WZZE——FtA—H 6,148 1,914 8,062
Impairment TRE 5,070 — 5,070
Exchange realignment & H 143 37 180
At 30 June 2012 R-ZE——FA=1+H 11,361 1,951 13,312
Exchange realignment b H % @) — @)
At 31 December 2012 RZZE——F+-_A=+—H 11,359 1,951 13,310
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=-A=+—H8 123,179 4,553 127,732
At 30 June 2012 R-ZE——FxXA=1H 118,989 4,554 123,543
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE_T——F+-A=+—HI~EA
18. DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF 18. WBFRBEEZRE

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E2—_—F —E——F
+=A=+—H ~NA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET FHET
Deposits for acquisition of WiEEF EE 2 1e
intangible assets 79,523 75,933
Deposits for acquisition of WEEME - BELRREB2IES
property, plant and equipment 47,768 21,661
127,291 97,594
A=
19. INVENTORIES 19. 78
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E2——F —E——F
+=BA=+—H ~NAZ=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Raw materials [FEA 9,574 1,128
Work in progress fE&m 2,674 3,449
Finished goods IR i 16,963 169,829
29,211 174,406

2012 SEEFEER BN BIIZERER AT




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 BE-_Z——F+=-A=t+—HIEAA

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. FEURBRFX
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E——F —E—-—F
t=A=+-H NA=TH
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Trade receivables FEUTAR R 399,160 497,245
Less: allowance for doubtful debts & : REERE & = (49,294)
399,160 447,951

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance for
doubtful debts) that were past due but not impaired are as follows:

BB I AR ME 2 FEUUAR 3R (B R AR

iR Rl DATAN T ¢

31.12.2012 30.6.2012

—E——F —E—F

+=A=+—H ANA=1H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Within 30 days =+HR 91,467 23,955
31 — 90 days =+—&=h+H 23,386 111,878
91 — 180 days A+—Z2—8aN\+H 53,076 38,992
Over 180 days a=PAG =1 162,059 190,774
329,988 365,599

The Group generally allows credit periods ranging from 30 days to
180 days to its trade customers.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
maintained with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 BE-_ZT——F+-A=t+—HI~EA
20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. FEURBRFR ()
The following is the movement in the allowance for bad and RIZREE CHEINT -

doubtful debts:

31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—=2—_—F —E——4F
+=B=+—H ~NA=1H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FHET
At beginning of period/year FER, ) 49,294 13,208
Impairment loss recognised ERERRERE - 48,364
Amounts written back during the 3,/ A [al & 2 2 &8
period/year (49,294) (12,701)
Exchange realignment VE 5 FEE - 423
At end of period/year REF R 49,294
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has determined trade RBEER  AEEEEETALT(ZE
receivables of HK$NIl (30 June 2012: HK$48,364,000) as individual ——#F;XA=+18 : 48,364,000 7T) Z
impaired. The impaired trade receivables are due from the individual FEUEBR A B BIRE o JB (B B UK AR 51 T 8
customers which are in default or delinquency of payments. BRI % B R B HE R 2 SRR ©

21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21. JE{{FIE « 12 R HAE

RECEIVABLES FIE
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E-——F —E——F
+=BA=+-8 ~A=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FAT
Advance to suppliers M E R R 116,201 256,053
Other deposits iz e 13,738 2,766
Other receivables H b U SR IE 42,582 81,751
Prepayments TEf IR 16,363 35,178

188,884 375,748
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

BE—Z2——F+-A=+—HI1EAR

22. BNFEFTABRZEME

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E——F —E——F
+t=A=+-8 ~A=+A
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Investments held-for-trading BIEEEERE
— Equity securities listed in — RBEB LM 2BRAES
Hong Kong 2,610

At the end of the reporting period, the above investments are
stated at fair values, which are determined by reference to the
closing prices quoted in the relevant stock exchange.

RBEHR - DR EDNRE2ENEH
EHFERX PR EEEZRFES
E@ o

23. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS 23. BIRHIRITIER
Bank deposits amounting to HK$7,055,000 (30 June 2012: Nil) $R1T1F 5K7,055,000 L (=& — —F <
have been pledged to banks for short term loans amounting to A=+H: &) BEERFRITERETH
HK$7,596,000 (30 June 2012: Nil) granted to subsidiaries. The B AR ZEHE 7,596,000/ T (# =
Company has also provided guarantee to the extent of HK$ T—_FRA=1H: &) AQFNE
4,000,000 of such loan (30 June 2012: Nil). Bz B FIE 4,000,000 T (= F—=
FRA=+H8E)ZER-
Trade deposits amounting to HK$1,731,000 (30 June 2012: EARFUWEAE1,731,0008 T (= F
HK$1,731,000) have been received from a customer and the ——FXA=1+H :1,731,00087T) 2R
deposits will be released upon the delivery of goods to the P1%e  MAFEEKRERIN TZE
customer. PIRIERERR ©
24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. HERIRESEEY

31.12.2012 30.6.2012

—E——F —ET——F

+=A=+-8 ALESN:

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

Cash at bank and in hand RIOTGRERS 13,067 149,044

Cash at bank and in hand included HEEBEFRSEAFIEHEZEE
in a disposal group classified ZEITIER RS
as held for sale —
149,044
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

24.

25.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continueq)

As at 31 December 2012, the cash at bank and in hand of the
Group included currencies denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
which amounted to approximately HK$8,124,000 (30 June
2012: HK$128,052,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposits rate. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks and other financial institutions with no recent history of
default.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE

As described in note 44(a), the Group intended to dispose of its
subsidiary, Magic Golden Limited and the disposal was completed
on 24 January 2013. The major classes of assets and liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows

Assets classified as held for sale comprise:

HE

24,

25.

—E——F4+-A=+—HINEA

ReERBEEEY @
RZB——F+-A=+—8  ~EBZ
BITERRREBEUARE ([ARE])
SHEZE® - 458,124,000 T (=&
——4ENA=1H : 128,052,000/87C) °
ARBRI AR AEMER - A -
R A B 2 FINGE B 3 {19 2 A5 PEE - 50 [
MESRBRT - AEBEEEBERES
TINEEBZBITBAREHBRARME
egg o

RITEFRBRITE BRI FE A
KEREAE - RITERTFRNEERIFA
TR R RO R 2 SRTT R EL A & BRAAE

DERFFFLEZEE

WM EE 44(@) Pl - AR BB B L EHM
J& A & Magic Golden Limited @ M i & %
BER=ZZT—=F—A=+MHZK - ®
HEHAREERABEZEZERWT -

DRRFHHELEZBEERSRE

31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E-——F —E——F
+=—A=+—H ~NAZ=TH
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHT

Inventories BB

Trade receivables FEUER X

Prepayment, deposits and other ~ FB{t7XIE © &%
receivables R e I8

Tax credit THIEE 2

Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEED

164,238 —
191,086 —

156,725 —
21,223 —
47,880 —

DRERFEREZEE

Assets classified as held for sale

581,152 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE-Z——F+-_A=t+—HI~EA
25. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR 25. P EARELEZEE @)
SALE (continued)
Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale EAOBMARIENEZEERBEZ8ER
comprise: &
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E——F —EF——F
+=—BA=+—H ~A=1H
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FHET
Trade payables FERTBR IR (47,816) -
Other payables and accruals EfE N RIARERT B R (232) —
Liabilities directly associated with B2 48 AiF{EH &
assets classified as held forsale ~ 2 EEBEEEBZ ARG (48,048) —

Net assets of the disposal group ~ DEABIEHE 2 BEHETEEE

classified as held for sale HFEE 533,104 —
Exchange fluctuation reserve Bl EARELE
relating to assets classified 2 BB

as held for sale

26. TRADE PAYABLES 26. FE{TERFX
The ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RERRENRRZRRATOT -

reporting period is as follows:

31.12.2012 30.6.2012

—E——F —E——F

+=A=+—8 ANAZTH

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE T FAT

Within 30 days =+An 5,043 2,553
31 to 60 days =—t+—=~+H 5,752 3,261
61 to 90 days ~t—=NTH 18,646 4,246
Over 90 days N+BUE 19,138 40,502

48,579 50,562
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

27. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

BE-Z——F+-A=+—RHI~EA

27. TAWBRFX

31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E-—_F T
+T=H=+—H ~NA=T+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THET

Cooperation development fee BEREZEER
(Note) (Ff3E)
Other receipts in advance E A TEUER K

98,192 98,192
12,687 9,611

110,879 107,803

31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E——F —E——F
+=B=+—H ~NA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Current liabilities mEEaE
Non-current liabilities e UN=Er=

Analysed for reporting purpose as: gt 2 BRIEL DT

37,247 34,159
73,632 73,644

110,879 107,803
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For the six months ended 31 December 2012

27.

28.

RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE (continued)
Note:

On 24 August 2011, the Group has entered into a cooperation agreement
(the “Cooperation Agreement”) with Beijing Huaxia Innomedia Technology
Co., Ltd (“Beijing Huaxia”), pursuant to which the parties agreed to jointly
operate and develop the advertising business and value-added services of
the digital mobile television project and 60,000 electronic displays in Hebei
province for 10 years (“Hebei Mobile Advertising Business”).

Under the Cooperation Agreement, Beijing Huaxia shall contribute to the
Hebei Mobile Advertising Business a cooperation development fee of
RMB200,000,000 (equivalent to HK$245,440,000). The Group has already
received RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to HK$122,720,000) as cooperation
development fee at 31 December 2012. On 3 December 2012, pursuant
to a supplemental agreement, both parties agreed that the remaining
RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to HK$122,720,000) shall be contributed
by Beijing Huaxia in terms of equivalent amount of intangible assets and
equipment. As the terms have been changed, the directors of the Company
consider that no amortisation of the cooperation development fee is
appropriate for the six months ended 31 December 2012.

PROMISSORY NOTE

On 17 February 2011, the Company issued a promissory note of
HK$8,000,000 to GEM Management Limited as commitment fee
pursuant to the Equity Line of Credit Agreement entered by the
Company on 29 December 2010 (note 39). The promissory note
was interest bearing at 8% per annum and payable on or before
28 December 2011. The promissory note has been fully settled at
31 December 2012.

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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7. AR &)

28.

fias -

RZZE——FNAZ+TIEA - AEFR RE
EBEENEERAR ([ItREE DFIVE
et ([ A 1EH=ED - B - sTAFRERT
FARFAEERERNTILEZBHETE
T8 B LA K& 60,000 38 B F BN 5 2 B S 1 R Ig
ERS (DB EEEER )

RIEE B - tREE AL BRI EEE
B A 1EFRE A AR 200,000,000 7t (46
EP245,440,00087L) e RZT—=F+=A
=+—H ' A& HEB WEA K% 100,000,000
7T (& 122,720,000/ 78) * tEAAERRE
B-R-—E——F+-_A=H BEHRH
& BFREHEARE 100,000,000 7T (1HE
M 122,720, ooo;‘%ﬁ)ﬂgmiﬁﬁga‘@iﬁﬁ?ﬁé
Bz EBEE - BRBEHREER - AR
EERARBE=_Z——F+=-A=+— EJJ:
NEA T A ERRE o

A EE

E’\\*E**E*H"H:EI AN EIREA
RARZZE—EF+-A=+hBFIuZ
% 2= #1 85 (= & 1% 2% (7 GEM Management
Limited 2% 7 8,000,000 7% JT & X, Z 1% {E
BEEMRS (HFE39) o &N ZRRFF
L%t B W AR -_ZT——F+_A
ZHN\BHZAMEE - AAEBER T
——&+-_A=+—H2HEE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE

29. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

—E——HF+-_A=+—HIt @A
29. RIEHNEE

AEERBEMERNEES T/RE - F15
HEFEHANFEE(ZT——F A=+
B:OF¥)  #ERNETZHEBENE
DREBZFINABIIERAEFT6%E
8.4%(=ZZT——FA=1+H : BF7.6%
£8.4%) °

The Group leased certain motor vehicles under finance leases. The
average lease term is 4.5 years (30 June 2012: 4.5 years). The
interest rates underlying the obligations under finance leases are
fixed at respective contract dates and range from 7.6% to 8.4%
per annum (30 June 2012: 7.6% to 8.4% per annum).

Present value of

Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments

BEHES BREHESZHE
31.12.2012 30.6.2012 31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—B-—F —EB-—F

+=A =Ll —T—F

=+—H ~NA=1H =+—AH ~NA=1H

HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET FExT FAET

Amounts payable under RIERERL
finance leases: FERTSRIA -

Within one year —FR
In the second year FF

B RKREE M

Less: Future finance

liabilities)

Amount due after
one year

charges
Present value of lease MAHET2RE
obligations
Less: Amount due for o AR —ER
settlement within BB Z I
one year (shown Cb =ik 2
under current afE)

—F R B FR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE

30. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 0. RIEFRIEEE

N~

—E——F4+-—A=+—HINEA

Intangible

assets

B EE

HK$’000

FAET

At 1 July 2011 N-_E——F+H—H 1,983

Exchange realignment M H 38
At 30 June 2012 and at RZZE—ZFA=+HK

31 December 2012 “T——F+ZA=+—H 2,021

31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

On 28 December 2010, an aggregate of HK$200,000,000
principal amount of redeemable convertible notes were issued to
Sandmartin International Holdings Limited. Further details are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 17 December 2010.

The notes carry zero coupon and convertible into ordinary shares
of the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$2.00 per
conversion share (subject to pro-rata adjustments on capital
structure changes) at any time during the period commencing from
the date immediately after the expiry of six months from the date of
issue of convertible notes. Unless previously converted, lapsed or
redeemed by the Company, any outstanding convertible notes are
to be redeemed on the second anniversary of the issue date of the
convertible notes.

The fair value of the liability component, included in the convertible
notes, was calculated using a market interest rate for an equivalent
non-convertible note. The fair value of the equity conversion
component, which was included in shareholders’ equity in
convertible notes reserve, was valued by the Black-Scholes-Merton
option pricing model.

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012

31.

BN T RREE

W=2—BE+-A=+N\A  £2BA
#£200,000,000 %8 7T 7] #& B A #2 i R 4%
EEITESTERERERAR - £
SHERRAATAMA-T—BF T
ATERZALR -

ZERBERTERR NEHEARRERH
178 BEERT /B A EmRE BEsT RN
EARI B ) AT # B AR A A4 2.00 78 7T (7]
RERGEEBRIZLLOIELAR) 29
FHME LR ARBIERBI ° BRIEATSL
B KRB ARRERSN - EFEART
B2 R RES N AT RRERET A
ZFIRAFERAEMD -
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REBEIETHE XA ATBRERER
2 IR A ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 BE—Z2——Ft+-A=+—HI1EAH

31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE (contiues)  31. FE{S AT IR 45 ()

Interest expenses on the convertible notes issued are calculated BT 2 AR ER 2 F B RS IR ER
using the effective interest method by applying the effective interest ML - A EI D AL4.2% 2 BFE A
rate of approximately 4.2% to the liability components. REH o
The convertible notes issued on 28 December 2010 were fully RZZE—ZTF+ A=+ N\BET AR
redeemed on 27 December 2012. BREBER-_ZTE——FT+A=1++tHE
HAEE -
The liability component of the convertible notes recognised in RERERERAR AR TRREES
the consolidated statement of financial position are calculated as EFHFTELT :
follows:
HK$’000
FAET
At 1 July 2011 RZE——FtH—H 264,504
Effective interest expenses FAZEBRMERAX
for the year 14,011
Conversion to shares HBBARRERRG
of the Company (82,666)
At 30 June 2012 R-E——FxA=+H 195,849
Effective interest expenses Az BRI ERX
for the period 4,151
Redemption for the period HRAfE D (200,000)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+ZA=+—H —
32. NOTES PAYABLE 32. BV EHE
(@ On 21 December 2012, an aggregate of HK$50,000,000 @ RZTE—=—F+=ZA=+—H =&
principal amount of redeemable notes were issued. Further S H A 50,000,000 702 AT EE D
details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated FREEBIT  E—PHEBHNAR
22 November 2012 and 21 December 2012. The notes carry AIAMA—ZE——F+—A=+=
interest at 6% per annum and will mature for redemption on Ak ——+=-HA=+—Hx
20 December 2014. NEN  ZEEBZNEREF

6% BR-_Z—NWNE+_—_A_=-+
HEIHREE O -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE-T——F+-_A=+—HI~EA
32. NOTES PAYABLE (continued) 32. ENEE @)

(o) On 27 December 2012, an aggregate of HK$100,000,000 by R—ZE——F+=_A=++tH"
principal amount of redeemable notes were issued to 7N & 884 100,000,000 7% 7T Z 7]
Sandmartin International Holdings Limited. Further details are BEOZEBEERTTEST BHRE
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 27 December RERAF - E—FFHBHRAEAR
2012. The notes carry interest at 6% per annum and will AEBRAR-Z—=—F+=-A=t+t
mature on redemption on 26 December 2014. A2 RAEN - ZERBEZANERE

F6% BN —_ZT—NFE+_A
B EIEEE o

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. g A~
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E--H+=ZA=t+—8H —E-FXA=TH
Number Number
of share HK$’000 of share HK$’'000
’000 ’000
RGEE FET avE-4= FET
TR T
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of FRE{EO0.01 /5T
HK$0.01 each 2 BB 10,000,000 (008 10,000,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid: ERTRHE

At beginning of period/year &,/ 4] 2,808,590 2,487,092 24,871
Issue of shares upon A E SEMm T

placing (Note) 2 B& 1 (BsE) 300,000 — —
Issue of shares upon ER R A el

conversion of 31T 2 B tn

convertible notes 319,225 3,192
Issue of shares upon A 1T{E B AR

exercise of share 1T 2 it

options 2,273 23
At end of period/year ER,FR 3,108,590 2,808,590 28,086
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 31 December 2012

33.

34.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Note:

On 12 December 2012, the Company entered into a conditional
Subscription Agreement with each of two subscribers, Mr. Yuan Hailin and
Mr. Tan Zhenyu, respectively. Pursuant to the Subscription Agreements,
the subscribers conditionally agreed to subscribe for and the Company
conditionally agreed to allot and issue a total of 300,000,000 Subscription
Shares at a price of HK$0.30 per Subscription Share. Details of these
transactions are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 12
December 2012. The Subscription was completed on 18 December
2012. A total of 300,000,000 new shares were issued and approximately
HK$89.7 million was raised for the general working capital of the Group
and for any possible acquisition in the future.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

ﬂa) The Company had adopted an employee share option
scheme (“the Scheme”) on 13 March 2003. A new employee
share option scheme (“the New Scheme”) was approved by
the shareholders of the Company in the Company’s annual
general meeting held on 30 December 2011. Details of which
are set out in the Company’s circular dated 28 November
2011. The purpose of the Scheme and the New Scheme is
to enable the Group to grant options to selected participants,
which include any person who is a full time or part time
employee or director of the Group, a consultant or agent of
the Group, as incentives or rewards for their contributions to
the Group.

0=

33.

34.

—E——F4+-A=+—HINEA

¥ NE S
GEE

R-ZT——F+-"A+-H ARRLERAZR
AR BMILE REBIRF R E D BIRT LA 5T
REHZE - REBERERZE  RBAFKER
BRE  MARRAEGRERERERAERG
0.30 7 7T 2 (B 18 B % & #1714 #£ 300,000,000
RRABEEIRD - ZERHZFBEHNRAAR A H
BT —F+_F+_AZAERN - BES
BHENRZE——F+-_A+N\BEK - XAF]
A 217 300,000,000 B #H B {5 * BEEEH
89,700,000 * AEAEE —REEES
K B EEI AT B 2 Uk -

L}*ﬁ?’mﬁé%’&%ﬁfﬁ%éﬁ%
R

(a) ZARER-_"TE=4=A+=H
R —1EE TR B Z&t
gl)) o B THERE S 35T

g NER=_ZE—F+_A=+H

B ARAIRRBF RS LER

REBRRELE - SR A AR E

HAE—T——F+—A=+NHZ

A o ZatEl R EIEESA

EEAAETLEE (BIEAEER

B aBEEXNES  AEBEZE

s RIBEE R A L) 5 H B

ERESHAREEFTIER R 2 2ZE)

k[l °

L]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE-T——F+-_A=+—HI~EA
N ooy ~
34. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 34. EmEHE R AR HER
TRANSACTIONS (continuea) R 5 4#)
(a) (continued) (a) &)
Details of the share options granted under the Scheme and AN iR IR % 1 &l KT 2%
the New Scheme and their subsequent movements are as R FHERERED :
follows:
31 December 2012 —E-——F+=-H=+—H
Category
of Eligible Exercise Exercised
Scheme price OQutstanding  Granted during during Outstanding at
Participants  Date of grant pershare  Exercisable period Vesting date at1July 2012 the period the period 31 De%zmber 201¢2
S
GEGHE | A t-A=1-A
SaEEH  RAAH BROKE TR BRAS 7 MW%OHO mmf&%
T T
Directors 13 April 2011 HK$1.54 13 May 2011 13 May 2011 - -
to 12 March 2013
&% I—f 1548 Z3-—%FRAT=A Z2——F1nA+=H
mA+=H 3R
=A+ZH
Employees 13 April 2011 HK§154 18 May 2011 13 May 2011
t0 12 March 2013
&8 5 1541 —3-—FRAT=H “E-—FRAT=E
mA+=H BIE-CE
=ATZH
Employees 29 February 2012 HKS084 1 March 2013 1 March 2013
t0 29 February 2016
5] 5 0843T  —F-=%F-H “5--%-f-8
ZAZTAA SN
25,300
33,000
Number of options exercisable at the end of the period 33,000
RIBRA TR ERES A
Weighted average exercise price HK$1.48 £ HK$1.48 # 70
METHARE

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE_T——F+-A=+—HI~EA
==\ /) / A\
34. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 4. LERGEERURD BER
TRANSACTIONS (continueq) R )
(a) (continued) (a) &)
30 June 2012 —ZT——FXA=TH
Category
of Eligible Exercise Exercised
Scheme price Qutstanding Granted during during Qutstanding at
Participants ~ Date of grant pershare  Exercisable period Vesting date at 1 July 2011 the year the year g?June 2012
R-F— R-F-—
SRmHE . ) tA-A o - AAZTH
SEEEN RHEH BRORE AR L Kirfe REMEL REMR Rife
‘000 ‘000 000 000
T T T T
Directors 18 February 2009 HK$0.358 18 March 2009 18 March 2009 2213 - 2,279 -
to 17 March 2012
g% “IINE 0.358 87T :Tfﬂﬁ AthR ZIINEZATR
ZAThA it S 3
—HHE
Directors 13 April 2011 HK$1.54 13 May 2011 13 May 2011 7,700 - - 7,700
to 12 March 2013
5] f 16487 ZE-—ERA1=H Z5—%nA+t=H
BA+=A E-T--E
=“AtZA
9973 — 0273 7,00
Employees 13 April 2011 HK$1.54 13 May 2011 13 May 2011 22,300 - - 22,300
t0 12 March 2013
[E& f 14T ZE-—%1ATZR “Z--ERfAT=H
TA+=R E-R-cE
=AtzA
Employees 29 February 2012 HKS0.84 1 March 2013 1 March 2013 - 3,000 - 3,000
to 29 February 2016
5] -z- 08T ZT-=%=F-R ZZ2-Z%=f-B
_ﬂ ﬂ'LE E-F— 7 F-A-tNA
22,300 3,000 — 25,300
32213 3,000 (2.273) 33,000
Nurber of options exercisable at the end of the year 33,000
RERATR BRERR ——
Weighted average exercise price HK$1.46 T HK$0.84 T HKS$0.358 7T HK$1.48 BT
eV TRE
Note: Mzt :
During the year ended 30 June 2012, options were granted on 29 REBEE_ZE——FA=1+HLEFE "
February 2012. The estimated fair values of the options granted on BREEN —_E——F_A-t+NLHBHRK
that date were approximately HK$965,000. e Rz A& ﬁ 2R 2 EEr AT E
#9/5 965,000 7T °
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for REBEZT——FA=THLEFE "
shares options exercised during the year ended 30 June 2012 was AT 2 BEARRERN 1T B Hl 2 in4E 19
HK$0.79. BREA0.797TT °
The options outstanding at 31 December 2012 had an exercise price N-EBE——F+-A=+—BHKR1TE
of HK$0.84 or HK$1.54 (30 June 2012: HK$0.84 or HK$1.54) and E%MEZ??EFF%O 84 7Tk 1.564 87T
a weighted average remaining contractual life of 0.47 years (30 June —E——FA=1H:084BLk
2012: 0.91 years). 1648 7T)  MEFHRTEHFHR
047F(ZZT—Z=ZF~A=+H:091
) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE-T——F+-_A=+—HI~EA
R Ly .
34. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 4. UEREER UMD AER
TRANSACTIONS (continuea) 5 4
(a) (continued) (a) (&)
Fair value of share options and assumptions BREZAFEREBRR
The fair value of services received in return for share options ER B REMESRSS A FE
granted are measured by reference to the fair value of share D2EMRLEREZ A FET
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the services = o TEGRGE A A FEAZ
received is measured based on Black — Scholes option Mh% — SR EERAE
pricing model. The contractual life of the option is used as TE o ZIEE AT EBREZEDF
an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise are B o e — AT R HTHARE E (B AR A
incorporated into the Black — Scholes option pricing model. VB IEIRATTTE 2 TEE] o
Grant date 29.2.2012 13.4.2011 18.2.2009
—EB-—=F —E——fF —ZETNF
R A —H=t+hH mA+=8 ZR+NH
Fair value at REtE B2 ATE
measurement date HK$0.322 & Tt HK$0.344 77T HK$0.098 7T
Share price B& (B HK$0.83 & T HK$1.51 77T HK$0.351 /7T
Exercise price IEE HK$0.84 &t HK$1.54 77T HK$0.37 77T
Expected volatility SEEEN 64.37% 62.28% 64.60%
Option life B A e 4 P 2.5 years 1.0 years 4F 1.5 years F
Expected dividends ~ FEHAILE - — —
Risk free interest rate 4 &\ FI| & 0.29% 0.29% 1.871%
The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility. TEHUR IR R LR IR ET & - TREIR
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends. BIEELRBEFHE - TEERERE
Changes in the subjective input assumption could materially ZEEARH AT EGEFEBER
affect the fair value estimate. -7 2
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For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE_T——F+-A=+—HI~EA
34. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 34. IEREE R ARG HER

TRANSACTIONS (continueq) X5 )

(b) Pursuant to general mandates (*General Mandates”) granted (b) BEARATEEHFNARTR
to the directors of the Company at the annual general T—ZEF+—ANARZZT——F
meeting of the Company held on 9 November 2010 and 30 TZA=THBTZRRAFERE
December 2011 respectively, the directors of the Company LR —MmEE(—RERE]D -
are authorised, at their discretion, to allot and issue shares of ARREFERERNBREE MEETT
the Company up to 20% of the aggregate nominal amount TNEBANIR=ZZE—ZTF+— AN
of the share capital of the Company in issue on 9 November BER=—E——F+t-A=1+HAR
2010 and 30 December 2011 respectively. The following AIE TR AEEATE20% 2 AR
options were granted under the General Mandates. AR o AT IRIETHARIE — AR X

R o
()  The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: () AT AR LR G
%
Number of
instruments Vesting conditions Exercise period
IEHH BERY g
‘000
T
Options granted to consultants
of the Company
i YN 1
— on 30 November 2010 90,000 Immediately from 30 November 2010
the date of grant to 29 November 2011
—RZZE-FF+—A=1H 90,000 R B EENR R —T-FTF+—A=1H
E_Z——F+—AZtNH
— on 20 November 2012 40,000 Immediately from 20 November 2012
the date of grant to 19 November 2014
—RZE——F+—RA=+H 40,000 R B BRI B ke S iy =
E-T-NFE+—ATNA
Total share options 130,000
B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE-T——F+-_A=+—HI~EA
o AETRCL e .
34. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 34. EmEHE R AR HER
TRANSACTIONS (continuea) R 5 4#)
(b) (continued) (b) (&)
(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices of (iy LA RERE 2B RNk
share options are as follows: BITEE -
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
Z2-Zf+ZA=t-H “E-ZFRA=TH
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of option exercise price of option
I IETH
fIEE BREA T fE BIREHE
’000 '000
T
Outstanding at the beginning &,/ 447
of the period/year R - HK$1.32 7T 90,000
Granted during the period/year 78,/ FRE I BRGLEIEEE T — —
Lapsed during the period/year ~ FAE,/F &K = HK$1.32 & 7T (90,000)
Outstanding at the end #/ER
of the period/year KITHE HK$0.32 &7t — —
The options granted on 30 November 2010 were RZZE—ZTF+—A=+A%K
lapsed during the year ended 30 June 2012. HeBREEREE_S—=
FRA=THIEFERRK -
The options outstanding at 31 December 2012 had R-ZE——F+_-_HA=+—H
an exercise price of HK$0.32 and a weighted average WMATHEBEREZITHEES
remaining contractual life of 1.89 years. 0.32787C - TR TSR

FHIA1.894F o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE—

34. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 34.

TRANSACTIONS (continued)
( b ) (continued)

(i)  Fair values of share options and assumptions

For the options granted to the consultants, due to the
unigueness of the services provided by them, the fair
values of the options are measured by the services
performed by them, taking into account the nature and
number of working hours of the professional spent,
along with other out-of-pocket expenses. Details are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 30
November 2010 and 20 November 2012 respectively.

(c) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at end of
the reporting period are as follows:

T——F+—-A=+—HItEA

%%é%ﬁ&u%ﬁﬁgﬁ
R (4#)

(b) &)
@iy  EERRAE 2 ATFERERR

R TEMERENS © A
BRI TR AR TS 2 BRI -
BREZ ATFEDNEERE
FARIPT A T 1M B % B A
REMEHERE - REBT
R RBETE - BAFES
AERARFAPE-_T—F
F+—A=+tHR=_Z——%F
+—A=+RZ2A%-

() MIBEHRARBINE R ARITERERAE
G

31.12.2012 30.6.2012

Exercise period Exercise price Number Number

—E——F —E—_F

tT=ZA=1t—H ImuERE:

THER TEE ®A A

’000 ‘000

TR RRikd

13 May 2011 to 12 March 2013 HK$1.54 30,000
—E——FRAAt+=-AEZE—=F=-A+=H 1.54 47T

1 March 2013 to 29 February 2016 HK$0.84 3,000
—E-=F=-A-HEZZE-—R"F-A=TANH 0.84 77T

20 November 2012 to 19 November 2014 HK$0.32 —
—EH+—AZtTREZZE-—MOF+—HA+TNA 03287

33,000

Each option entitles the holders to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company.

BOBRER TEREARBAR
Al — BB R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE

35. RESERVES 35. %

—E——F4+-—A=+—HINEA

Share premium

The application of the share premium is governed by the
Company’s Bye-Law and the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the difference between the addition
registered capital invested by a former non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary, over the fair value of the intangible assets injected
by the former non-controlling shareholder.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of the actual
or estimated number of unexercised share options granted to
directors, employees and advisors of the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 4.

Other reserve

During the year ended 30 June 2011, the Group acquired
additional interests in Beijing Jingiao Hengtai Technology Co., Ltd
and Shenzhen Zhongzesaien Technology Co., Ltd. As a result of
the acquisitions, the difference of HK$79,992,000 between the
consideration paid of HK$115,194,000 and the amount of non-
controlling interests adjusted of HK$35,202,000 was directly
recognised in equity.
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PRI (E < RS B|ANR R 2 A AARR K
BRE-NN—FRRVEGRIERT) IR
B o

N

EXFREE—RNB AR —BAIFFE
BRI A Z BRINEME A B Z B AI3E
ERBFEIABTEEZ AFEZER

R R R RRE BN R RER T
BELZR -

BRERFRE

BRERERERENZ4EEUARN R
ERNFAARA S RRER IR TAR
AEE  EENERZERRMARITRE
BREERE 2 AHE -

Hitotdte

HE_T——FX A=Zt+HLEE &
SEEURBILRSBERREERAA
RFEYIR2EBRHE B R A A 2 BIME
W XZFWHEBEIZE  BNRE
115,194,000 7T B2 4¢ FA & FE = IR AR 3R
7 25 3R TE 35,202,000 7T 2 [ 2 = %8
79,992,000 47T T e R E B R ©




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE

36. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 36.

—E——F4+-A=+—HINEA

BEREHE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
obligations under finance leases, short-term loans and notes
payable, and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on a
continuous basis taking into account the cost of capital and the
risk associated with the capital. The Group will balance its overall
capital structure through new share issues, repurchase of shares
and the issue of new debt or the redemption of the existing debt.

AEEEREAS  ARRAEENNE
BISELAUBEEEHARE - AN
B EA TS B 2 PR E N T AT AR
BEFMBAER - A EE 2 EBHEIRE
KA THMFFTEE -

AEBZERGERAER - EPEERE
BHOEME  BHERNENEREEART]
BiERB ARG ER (BREBFTRARL
1) °

AEBERERERNENEE 815
BERZRAREEARIERE 2 Bk - AN
BB BEITHAR - BER REITH
BB EIR A B AE L RBEREE
REF 1 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 BE-_ZT——F+-A=t+—HIEA

37. OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENTS 37. KEHFASE

The Group as lessee A EEERBAHEA
1.7.2012 to 1.7.2011 to
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—B—C=F —E——%F
tA—HBZE +tHA—HB=
—E-—_—F T
+T=HA=+—H ~NA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FBT
Minimum lease payments i FNRE
paid under operating leases EEREHE
during the period/year: ZE&EHES
— office premises N NEL Y 6,464
— property, plant and equipment  — ¥13 - BE KRB 2,410
— staff quarters —BIfFRE 900
9,774
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future RIBEHR - NEBRBE AT AEEECEE
minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating leases, KR 2 RIRFRFASBEEWT ¢
which are payable as follows:
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E——F —E——F
+=A=+—8 NA=TH
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Within one year —FR 5,848 4,861
In the second to fifth years inclusive BB —EERF (HEMFAEIELN) 12,900 2,529
18,748 7,390
Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group KERNNREAEERN 2ETHAE

for certain of its office premises, staff quarters and equipment. Y - BEIEFEREERES - HEJIETL
Leases are negotiated for the terms of one to three years. B—E=F o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE_T——F+-A=+—HI~EA
38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 38. EANAIE
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E-—_F T
+T=H=+—H ~NA=T+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
Capital expenditure contracted LTEEZEEZEERRN
for but not provided in the RE SRR IELBE
consolidated financial ZERRY
statements in respect of:
— acquisition of intangible — R EE
assets 3,603
— acquisition of property, — WEEME - BB MRS
plant and equipment 4,449
— acquisition of investment — W& (Fi5E44(0))
(note 44(b)) 158,309 —
— contribution to property, — B BHTEGEL
plant and equipment in LEYME  BE
related to digital T
cable television business 402,907 414,019
561,216 422,071
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

TO THE COMPANY AND ISSUE OF
WARRANTS

On 29 December 2010, the Company entered into the Equity Line
of Credit Agreement (“the Credit Agreement”) with GEM Global
Yield Fund Limited (“GEM Global”) and GEM Management Limited
(“GEMML”), pursuant to which the Company has been granted an
option to require GEM Global to subscribe for up to HK$400 million
worth of shares of the Company at the average closing price of the
Shares in accordance with and structured under the Equity Line of
Credit during the commitment period (the “Option”). Further details
are set out in the Company’s circular dated on 20 January 2011.

The Option is exercisable by the Company during the commitment
period commencing on (and including) the date of the Credit
Agreement and expiring upon the earlier of (i) the third anniversary
of the date of the Credit Agreement, and (i) the date on which the
Equity Line of Credit has been fully utilised by the Company by way
of allotting and issuing shares (the “Option Shares”) for the total
issue price equals to the total commitment amount (i.e. HK$400
million) upon exercising the Option in full.

The Company shall exercise any part of the Option by serving
a drawdown notice and specifying the proposed number of the
Option Shares thereunder. GEM Global shall respond to any
drawdown notice by delivering a closing notice, which shall set out,
inter alia, the final number of Option Shares to be subscribed by,
and allotted and issued to, GEM Global or any other subscribers
procured by it on the closing date.

On 17 February 2011, the Company issued a total of 95 million
warrants at nil consideration at an exercise price of HK$2 per
warrant share (subject to adjustments conditions) as set out in the
warrant to GEM Global pursuant to the Credit Agreement.
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For the six months ended 31 December 2012 BE-_Z——F+=-A=t+—HIEAA

39. GRANT OF THE EQUITY LINE OF CREDIT 39. F']ZI-"D\TT R EREE

)4 ?’iﬁ ﬁ /G HX *‘E ng

RZZE—ZFTF+_F=+NH '  ~AF
£ GEM Global Yield Fund Limited ([ GEM
Global]) & GEM Management Limited
(TGEMML]) Tz Ik E=H A EE = ([ =
Bzl - Bl - NARBEREEREN
Z 5k GEM Global A & & B R 2 ik {7 2 F
HRHERBRIEREZHBEEFTLHE
B{E&® 400 ooo,ooo T /NG g )
(MEEE]) - E—HFFRHNARRIAH
ﬁ_g——i—ﬂ ZTHZBHA o

EBEEITHARATNRNEAER(RAEERE
A (PiEZB)RE()EEHRZBHZ
FZEBAFEAER: RHREZHBEE
RIBEEEEREITERBA AR RS RAE
B RBITRBEITEMRSN REBE (A
400,000,000 7T ) 2 i fn ([ 3= =R AR 1)
BEBABHRE 2R E LHRM) AT
Ed

RAEIEE B ERIGBMILTAE HEE
REEEROEB TR AR EERE -
GEM Global 78 35 18 i 2 45 SR i &N [B] fE 1
AIIREGAEA - ZARBAAESHS| (EHE
&) GEM Global sk Z AR 2 fF (i H 5308
AREER B 3R R R 38 31T 2 &
BOBERERMNEE -

RZEBE——FZA++tR ' RAAFIRESE
B RRRIRE R P ) B AR R IR E
B 2B 2 1TEE (ZFARIGIFRR) M
GEM Gilobal & f& 17 & £ 95,000,000 {3
FORRHERE o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 BE-_Z——F+=-A=t+—HIEAA
39. GRANT OF THE EQUITY LINE OF CREDIT 39. @A QA aiRHBRE#HBEE
TO THE COMPANY AND ISSUE OF NEBTRRER »)
WARRANTS (continued)
The movement of the warrants during the period is set out below: HIN RSB T
Granted Utilised
Subscription Balance at during the during the
Date of grant Exercise period price 1.7.2011 period ended period ended Balance at
and 30.6.2012 31.12.2012 and 31.12.2012 31.12.2012
R-B-——F
tA-BK REZE REBZE

“g--f  CB-2f  ZB-ZE RIB-ZF
~A=tH tZA=+-A +=ZA=+t-H +=ZA=t-H

R B8 Ggd: REE k73 LFEEE LLEEEA iR
'000 '000 '000 '000
H i it H
17 February 2011 17 February 2012 HK$2 95,000 — — 95,000
to 16 February 2016
“E——%#-f++B —E-—£-Ft++H 28T

E-E-RE-RtRH

During the year ended 30 June 2012 and six months ended 31 REBEZZT——F - A=THILFERE

December 2012, no Option was exercised by the Company and no EE——F+-_A=+—HIt~EA

warrant was utilised to subscribe for the shares of the Company. QAT TR ERE - IR R AR
BB A AREBADFRRD

The Company paid GEMML a commitment fee of HK$8,000,000, KA T BMGEMML L i 48 2 7 & &
equivalent to 2% of the total commitment amount of HK$400 48 %8 400,000,000 78 J02% <2 7%= ¥& 1 &
million. The commitment fee is capitalised in other receivables and 8,000,000/ 7T » A VE & 1 H b FB UK
will be deducted from proceeds received from the issuing equity HRBRER - BN E Tz T AW
instruments. Z TS SRR IR,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 BE-_Z——F+=-A=t+—HIEAA
40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. ERAEAEIR S
(@) The Group entered into the following significant transactions @ H FAN AEEHEGHEALTE
with related parties during the period/year: TZEARSHWT :
1.7.2012 to 1.7.2011 to
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E-—C—f —T——%F
+tA—HZE +tA—B=%
—E2——F —E—_F
+=A=+—8 ~NA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T T
Sales to a related company: m—MEEEARHEE -
Beijing Hengtai Technologies Co., Ltd.  Jt REKREHREH AR ET
(“Beijing Hengtai”) NS AN =R 227
Purchase from a related company: m—RHBEEAREE -
Beijing Hengtai Technologies Co., Ltd.  dtREAREHRRL
BREELQTA 132,031
Acquisition of intangible assets ) — B E R F S
from a related company: mEEE
Beijing Hengtai Technologies Co., Ltd. 1t R#ZEAEZRRHR
BREMELRA 70,187
Tian Songlin, a director of Beijing Jingiao Hengtai Technology Co., I REHERRHEER AR (KAAF]
Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was also a director ZREWB AT EEHMM - RE
of Beijing Hengtai Technologies Co., Ltd. up to 13 December 2011. =T ——®+—A+=HIFTAE
IRERERRBEREARAZ

B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 BE-_ZT——F+-A=t+—HI~EA

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continues)  40. BEEEA LR 5Z 2)

(o) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: (o) AEBEFEEIEAEZFHM :
1.7.2012 to 1.7.2011 to
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E——F =%
tB—RZE +tHA—HB=
—E—C—F —E—-—F
+=A=+-A ~A=+A
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FET
Short term employee benefits EHEEERA 1,820 5,103
Post-employment benefits RIKBREF
— defined contribution plans — ERRHKETE 15 28
Total compensation paid BENEEEEAR
to key management personnel 2 FriNBEE 5,131
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note EHRESTHe 2 E—FHBHRY
12 to the financial statements. THmEMIEE12 ©
41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 41. TR
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) T AEZH%E
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E-——F —E——4F
+=A=+-8 NA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHEx FET
Financial assets SREE
At fair value through profit or loss BATERT ABRE 2,610
Loan and receivables (including cash ERREYSIE(BERS
and cash equivalents) MR EEY) 477,333 683,243
Financial liabilities TRaE
Amortised cost BEHAOR 243,160 261,755
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE-T——F+-_A=+—HI~EA
41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 4. TR e

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) G % EEE EE A ERBKE
and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade AEEZ X2 T HABERIER
receivables, deposits and other receivables, financial e REMERRIE BEA
assets at fair value through profit or loss, restricted bank FEFABRZECHEE AR
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, other RITER RERBESFEY Ik
payables and accruals, promissory note, obligations under MR EtWENRBERETE
finance leases, convertible notes payable, short term loans A AHEER BREENET E
and notes payable. Details of the financial instruments are AR EE SHERREMNE
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with %o R THE 25BN A B+
these financial instruments include market risk (currency HEEeHEemT AGRH 2 RER
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The BIET SRR (5% R & =R
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. ) EERRERDHECRER - B
The management manages and monitors these exposures 2 A fe] B AR Lt 5 R B 2 BRSR 251 2R
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely T BREEESEI LTI -
and effective manner. LATELR N B 78 R B ERE & R HE
Market risk 5 RS
Currency risk management B R ERE
The Company’s functional currency is Hong Kong dollar and KRR ZMeEB /AT - HXH
the functional currency of the majority of the subsidiaries is DB AR 2R, AARK -
Renminbi. The Group’s transactions, trade receivables and KEB RS -« RUBER X FE R
trade payables are mainly denominated in these currencies. REZBP LM EEEEHE -
The Group has certain investments in foreign operations, REBBETHINEBIKE - BB
whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency translation EFERZINERERR - A
risk. However, as the net foreign exchange exposure of FR PV INZE T P 2 2 3 N [3 s
the foreign operations is not significant, the Group does R+ BUA S B30 45 51 b S5 NME R
not actively hedge this foreign exchange exposure and no PR AR T R - VR E KR
currency risk sensitivity is disclosed. PREURRE o
The Group periodically reviews monetary assets and liabilities ANEE S HAR AT AT Be EHE LASN 2
held in currencies other than the functional currency to EREErEBEERGE LA
ensure that net exposure is kept at an acceptable level, and IR BT S 2 73 B B 4 135 10 AT B 20K
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure WK ERTERZERGHAEXN
should the need arise. HNEERBR: o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 BE-_Z——F+=-A=t+—HIEAA
41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) M. eI Ew
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BI%EEEERERKE

and policies (continued) (#)
Market risk (continued) miEEkK (E)
Interest rate risk management FIE )7 f EFE
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation AEERZHBERNOE T RERS
to obligations under finance leases and notes payable. EZEREBZ ATENERRER - KNE
The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in ENESERITESR 2 ZECRE
relation to variable-rate financial assets of bank balances. EfMcRESRENERAR - A&
The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to mitigate (3] 37 42 5% A () ) =45 HR 6 49 DAR%
its exposure associated with fluctuations relating to interest EHASZHE S RENEEZEE
cash flows. Bz Bk o
The Group currently does not have interest rate hedging ANEE B AT A R SRR o A
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate i BEREEERFERR - WiER
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate FEERZELIPEAFIERR

exposure should the need arise.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, no interest ERHmE ARG BRRITEBRRERK
rate sensitivity is disclosed as the interest rate sensitivity does ZHREREBRITTEKX @ FIRGREE
not give additional value in view of insignificant exposure of WEELREINMEE  HARAES
interest bearing bank balances and borrowings as at the end REBER R RHRE -

of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 BE-_Z——F+=-A=t+—HIEAA

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 4. TRTHE &)
(b) BB REEETE B ERBE

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Credit risk management

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the majority
of the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk on trade receivables
as at 31 December 2012 is mainly from five major
customers which accounted for 88% (30 June 2012: 60%)
of trade receivables. The Group has closely monitored
the recoverability of trade receivables and taken effective
measures to ensure timely collection of outstanding balances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 BE-_Z——F+=-A=t+—HIEAA
41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) M. eI Ew
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BI%EEEERERKE

and policies (continued) (%)
Liquidity risk management REBESEREE
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors REERBE SRR  AEEE
and maintain a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed RRGRHEEERAETUARTER
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s ZEBRMNESMAERESRER
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash BB Re RRSEBRYIKT
flows.
The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual TRENAEBZINTEERAE
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables BRTNEHFEH - ZRIIBEBEAEH
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows RAFEEREEEHREELRTEH
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the HreemBERANBRSRER
Group can be required to pay. Such non-derivative financial 2o ZEITESRA BN HREH
liabilities outstanding at the end of the reporting period are RAEEWR SN EERBARD
considered as if outstanding for whole period. B8 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

BE-Z——F+-A=+—RHI~EA
M. T E e

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b)) IBEREZEHIEZR KT
and policies (continued) (#)

REBEEERER(E)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

Total More than
contractual 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted  Within 1 year less than
amount cash flows or on demand 2 years
SRR —FR —FH0E
REE HEREAHE FIRER MELR
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER THET THET TET
31 December 2012 —E-—F
+=A=+-H
Trade payables, other JERERR - HAER IR
payables and accruals RIEsER 85,252 85,252
Obligations under BEHNET
finance leases 312 322 23
Short term loans RHER 7,59 7,596 -
Notes payable NES 150,000 150,000 150,000
243,160 243,170 150,023
Total More than
contractual 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted Within 1 year less than
amount cashflows  oron demand 2 years
BHIFEITR —ER —ENE
REE HRenEes FIREK MELAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FHET
30 June 2012 —EB-=F
~A=1+H
Trade payables, other FERTERT - EA B FE
payables and accruals RIETEH 63,395 63,395 63,395 —
Promissory note St 2,000 2,000 2,000 —
Obligations under BEROEL
finance leases 511 537 430 107
Convertible notes payable  JEf A2 1% 195,849 200,000 200,000 —
261,755 265,932 265,825 107
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 BE-_Z——F+=-A=t+—HIEAA

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 4. TRITHE &)
() WI Az FE

SHEERSBARY ATERT
o

(c) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

—  the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities — MR R R AR R R B
with standard terms and conditions and traded in MZEBE esRMEERESRHE

B2 ANFETID B2 ERHRT

BEANBREHESEE &

active markets are determined with reference to quoted
market bid and ask prices respectively; and

HibeMEENERABZA
FETDRAREBEN  RIE
FRREREDITERE

— the fair value of other financial assets and financial —
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

ARRIEFTRR  REAMHREK
NERZEREERERABEZK
EEEEATFEBS

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised
in the consolidated financial statements approximate to their
fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on
the degree to which the fair value is observable:

— Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

—  Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

REESHBERRRABRZ DT

EHE

TRRVVTHERRIRATEFE
ZEBMTAZAN  WIREAFE

ZABEREDRE 2=

—  E-RDFEFEDREER
BEXRBELCHRMSIHRE

(RIEHAR)HEMTE

— FRDFEFEDRERS
— P BRIERE AN B E
KBEMEBEABREZHA
BE - BER(AERER) X
& (BIR BB ) S E AT

&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE-T——F+-_A=+—HI~EA
41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 4. TR e
(c) Fair value of financial instruments (c) £MT AL FE &)

(continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the REEHMBERRARABRZLF

consolidated statement of financial position BEst& (&)

(continued)

—  Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from — F=RRAVEFENERERE
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or I IEDA R B SR T 35 EUR A AR
liability that are not based on observable market data ZEBEXB BB AER (KA
(unobservable inputs). BiRm ABR) 2(HEHER

BRT1S

All of the Group's listed equity securities investment of REBsABELTMRAZLHEZE
HK$2,610,000 were categorised under level 1 fair value 2,610,000 B EREE — R AT
measurement as at 30 June 2012. Bt 2R T ——F-~A=+H%
3 o
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments ANER B iR AN sk R SR AR T BR 2
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different ERMITAZREEREAR-T—=
from their fair values as at 31 December 2012 and 30 June FTZA=F+—HAERZZE—Z=F~
2012 except as follows: A=THZAFEITEEAEZR -
MET I ERRSD -

31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E--H+-A=t—H —E-—FXA=+H
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
BREE AFE REE NFE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT THERT FET FET

Convertible notes FEf AT IR R R iR

payable 195,849 197,031
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 BE-_ZT——F+-A=t+—HI~EA

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 42. 7NN 8] 2 BF R AR R 3R
OF THE COMPANY AT 31 DECEMBER

2012
31.12.2012 30.6.2012
—E——F
~NA=1H
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T FiBT
Non-current assets EmENEE 1,000 1,000
Current assets MENEE 1,382,408 1,349,717
Current liabilities MEAE 811 197,852
Net current assets MENEEFE 1,381,597 1,151,865
Total assets less current liabilites & ER RS EE 1,382,597 1,152,865
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 150,000 —
Net assets BEFE 1,232,597 1,152,865
Capital and reserve BRI
Share capital &N 31,086 28,086
Share premium AR (B 1,394,441 1,307,760
Share option reserve BRI 11,322 10,652
Convertible notes reserve AR IR - 14,917
Accumulated losses (Note) RETEE (W) (204,252) (208,550)
Total equity R ABEE 1,232,597 1,152,865
Note: MfsE -
Movements of the Company’s ViN/NETE-55 5= v
accumulated losses FHINT -
are as follows:
At beginning of period/year FER ] 208,550 155,094
(Profit)/loss for the period/year B FRCHH),EE (4,298) 53,456
At end of period/year FAHR, R 204,252 208,550

2012 SEEFEER BN BIIZERER AT




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012

43. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Comparative amounts were audited by another auditors.

44. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(@)

On 20 November 2012, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Group agreed
to sell 100% equity interest in Magic Golden Limited to
America Assets Holdings Group Limited at a consideration
of RMB 328 million (equivalent to approximately HK$403.4
million). The reason for the disposal is that the business of
the Magic Golden Limited and its subsidiaries has always
faced intensive competitions in Mainland China, which
requires the Group to grant relatively longer credit periods
to its customers, and to give significant down payments
to suppliers to secure the goods. In view of the above, the
directors consider that the disposal allows the Group to
focus its resources, apply the proceeds from the disposal
on its principal businesses of cable television and wireless
digital television valued-added services and improve financial
strength of the Group. Further details are set out in the
Company’s circular dated 17 December 2012.

The disposal was approved by shareholders at Special
General Meeting held on 4 January 2013 and was completed
on 24 January 2013. The Group has recognised loss of
HK$28,230,000 as net loss on remeasurement of assets
classified as held for sale.

On 7 December 2012, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement, pursuant to which Yantai Xinchao
Industry Co., Ltd. agreed to sell 25% equity interests in Yantai
Xinmu Cable Co., Ltd. at a consideration of RMB 139 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$170.97 million). Further
details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 7
December 2012.

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012

BE-ZE——F+-A=+—RHIt~EA
43. L BEHF

B BT R =5 — AL B A% o

44. 5 EHRE =18

@)

R-ZE-—Z—+—HA=Z+H" ' &
SBIIVEEHRZ B A&
[8 &= [A] America Assets Holdings
Group Limited t & 7 Magic Golden
Limitedz & #p K #E - KE S A
R % 328,000,000 T ( 18 & R %I
403,400,000 7T ) - EITHEFIR
2 3 B Jj B Magic Golden Limited
R EM A R 2 HE AR B A —
HEHEHRZS  mEEREE
MEAFZFPEEBAEREZEEHR
MR I AREE BARAES
BY) o ER ENFRL - EFERA -
HEFEAREASEEFEER -
BHESERMSRERAREREE
BRRESBTEEEERGE 2 EE
EBARBERAREB ZHBEN -
E—HHBEIRERRARBHA=Z
——F+ZRATtERZMAK -

HEFEERN -_T—=F—ANH
BITZRREFRAE EERER
R —_E—=F—F_+WAH
T ARBEEHEENENHE
BRELEZEEMELZERF
A FERR B8 28,230,000 78 7T

R=FE—=—F+=-_A+tH ~&E
RIVEE WS Bl EaEE
E=BRHERAFRIRAELEREEH
EBEBRARZ25%KE  RE
A AR 139,000,000 ¢ (FBE R4
170,970,000 7T ) © # — FFFIBE
RARBHHA-ZT——F+=A8
tHZRSE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45. XN REEMR B A B 2515
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

—E——F+—-f=+—HI1XEA

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December AAREEMBRARAINR T ——F+=A

2012 are as follows:

=+—BZEEOT :

Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation and paid up capital/ equity interest held
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
EMALR BETRER KRR RE
WEARER EEBE BA/EMER 2B TEEH
Direct Indirect
ERx  B#
Heng Xin Management Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 ordinary shares of 100% - Provision for
HK$1 each management services
EEERERAR 5 1,000,000 R BHREE1ET 0%  — REERRE
China Champion Development Limited ~ Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of - 100% Investment holding
HK$1 each and trading of
electronic parts
REERERAA B 10000 B REE 1 BT - 100%  REBBRREE
LRk ETEHH
Shenzhen Champion Maxiumic Group ~ The People’s RMB200,000,000 - 100% Investment holding,
Co., Ltd. Republic of China digital cable television
business, general
trading and provision
for technical services
and related
value-added services,
technology
development and
technology consultant
AT ERTEEERAT REARLAE AR 200,000,000 — 100% RAR
R8T
EES
—%E5
RERHE IR
RAABEERS -
Rl R
iR

2012 SEEFEER BN BIIZERER AT




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 BE-_ZT——F+-A=t+—HIEA
45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45. R AR EEMB AR Z7F1E
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (#)
(continued)
Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation and paid up capital/ equity interest held
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
TR K BEATRER RAFMERE
WEARER EEDY A/ EMER 2B TEER
Direct  Indirect
EE B%
Hebei Champion Maxiumic Technologies ~ The People’s RMB10,000,000 - 100% Investment holding,
Co., Ltd. Republic of China digital cable television

business, general
trading and provision
for technical services
and related
value-added services,
technology
development and
technology consultant
AP REERRBRAR hEARLNE AR%10,000,0007 - 100% @ RESR BREF
EREE —RES
RERH AR
RAABEERS
RiFE
el

Huzhou Mingxin Micro — Electronic The People’s RMB10,000,000 - 100% Research, design,

Co., Ltd. Republic of China manufacturing and
trading of wireless
digital audio products
and related solutions
and services

MM E TRt hEARHEAE AR%10,000,0007 - 100%  H%- R B

BREALF REERGET
EHREMR
RS
REY T

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 BE-_ZT——F+-A=t+—HI~EA

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45. RN B EEM B A B 25+ 1E
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY ()

(continued)

Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation and paid up capital/ equity interest held
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
MR BRITRARE RAAMERE
WELRER EEHE BA/EMER ZER TEEH
Direct  Indirect

EE  BE

Beijing Champion Maxiumic Technology ~ The People’s RMB16,550,000 - 100% Wireless digital television
Co., Ltd. Republic of China value-added services,

general trading and
provision for technical
services and related
value-added services,
technology
development and
technology consultant

SR EA SR ER A hEARLHE AE%16,550,0007 —  100% ESETEREE
% —KE5
RERHE RS
RAAREERS -
S
G

Beijing Jingiao Hengtai Technology The People’s HK$200,000,000 - 100% Investment holding,
Co., Ltd. Republic of China wireless digital

terrestrial television
network equipment
integrated business,
research, design,
manufacturing and
trading of information
safety products

IRERERNBERAF HEARLAE 200,000,000 7T — 100% RAER
HWHERET
ERME
RBEMES
ERE G
HEREE
BERZEm

2012 SEEFEER BN BIIZERER AT




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R R M

For the six months ended 31 December 2012 HE-T——F+-_A=+—HI~EA
45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45. X AR EEMB AR 2B
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (%)
(continued)
Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation and paid up capital/ equity interest held
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
EMALR BEATRER FRTEMERE
1] PNE2 BEBE BA/ERER ZERH TERH
Direct  Indirect
E& 5t
Beiiing Zhongguang Shitong Technology ~ The People’s RMB20,000,000 - 100% Wireless digital
Co., Ltd. Republic of China terrestrial television
network equipment
integrated business,
research, design,
manufacturing and
trading of information
safety products
IRPERBRBERAT GEINE AR#20,000,0007C = 100% HEESATER
BEREERER -
W7 &t B
REEfER
REEM

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the LR TIA AT EER U AN ERE LS
SEEBERATEZARFIRBE AR o A&
RRIEERE  JIHEMMB AR ZFE

SENILE °

opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the
results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end BRI BB A R E BT ERERES ©
of the period.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MBEREE

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for each  ZN & [ 11 {E B B A A & HARE o R AR B E K

of the five financial periods is as follows: aEMENT
e gt
RESULTS E
Period
from
1 July
Year ended 30 June 2012 to 31
BEAAZTALEE December
2009 2010 2011 2012 2012
—E-—_F
tB—-HZ
—g-fF
+=R
Er=[
—ETNF —Z2-ZF —2——F —E-CF il
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THL THT THET THT TR
Revenue Uz 339,365 653,260 676,624 612,460 300,332
Profit before taxation BT A A 123,435 204,375 234,369 166,977 9,928
Taxation B (5,429) (8,730) (27,766) (14,073) (8,766)
Profit for the period iyl 118,006 195,645 206,603 152,904 1,162
Attributed to: Heb:
Owners of the Company AREEBA 110,698 181,042 201,942 152,904 1,162
Non-controlling interests SRR R AR S 7,308 14,603 4,661 - -
118,006 195,645 206,603 152,904 1,162
Basic earnings per share BRARZF
(HK cents) (L) 11.28 11.50 9.50 6.12
Diluted earnings per share BRESRT
(HK cents) (L) 11.27 10.28 8.53 6.12

2012 SEEFEER BN BIIZERER AT




SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

MBEREE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 30 June As at 31
RAAZ+H December
2009 2010 2011 2012 2012
K=&
+=A8
“ETNF —T-TF —T——F —F-—F =+-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FET FET THL THT
Non-current assets FRBEE 354,032 1,022,244 1,044,679 1,206,635 1,273,729
Current assets MBBEE 349,088 551,757 1,124,400 1,151,490 639,108
Assets classified as held for sale DHEABENEZEE - - — - 581,152
Current liabilties RBEE (213,605) (306,536) (216,353) (338,293) (180,358)
Liabilities directly associated with EAEARIELE
assets classified as held for sale ZEEERIERE aE - - - - (48,048)
Non-current liabilities FRBaE (3,062) (179,847 (266,998) (75,770) (225,679)
Net assets BEFE 486,453 1,087,618 1,685,728 1,944,062 2,039,904
Equity attributable to owners /NIE 2 DN
of the Company [Elb TR 477,024 1,058,043 1,685,728 1,944,062 2,039,904
Non-controlling interests FEER R A 9,429 29,575 - - -
Net assets EEFE 486,453 1,087,618 1,685,728 1,944,062 2,039,904

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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